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BATLIBOI & ASSOCIATES 
Chartered Accountants 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

To the Members of Tata Communications Payment Solutions Limited 

Report on the Ind AS Financial Statements 

14th Floor, The Ruby 
29 Senapati Bapat Marg 
Dadar (West) 
Mumbai - 400 028, India 

Tel :+91 226192 0000 
Fax: +91 22 6192 1000 

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of Tata Communications 
Payment Solutions Limited (the 'Company'), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 
March 31, 2018, the Statement of Profit and Loss, including the statement of Other 
Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity for 
the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory 
information. 

Management's Responsibility for the Ind AS Financial Statements 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (the 'Act') with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS financial 
statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance 
including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian 
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act, read with the Companies 
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility also includes 
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for 
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other 
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments 
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and 
maintenance of adequate internal financial control that were operating effectively for ensuring 
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and 
presentation of the Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these Ind AS financial statements based on our 
audit. We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing 
standards and matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions 
of the Act and the Rules made thereunder. We conducted our audit of the standalone Ind AS 
financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing, issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India, as specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards 
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material 
misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's 
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor 
considers internal financial control relevant to the Company's preparation of the Ind AS financial 
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of 
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the 
Company's Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the Ind AS financial 

.. -c:=::::.-+ ... + We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 
e a basis for our audit opinion on the Ind AS financial statements. 

S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP, a Limited Liability Partnership with LLP Identity No. AAB-4295 
Regd. Office: 22, Camac Street, Block 'C', 3rd Floor, l(olkata-700 016 
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1 CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2017
(before appropriation of results)

December 31, 2017

€ €

December 31, 2016

€ €

ASSETS

Fixed assets

Intangible fixed assets  (1) 2,755,327 2,920,637

Tangible fixed assets  (2) 787,451 967,425

Financial fixed assets  (3) - 722,317

3,542,778 4,610,379

Current assets

Receivables  (4) 2,947,480 2,859,559

Cash and cash equivalents  (5) 2,107,062 63,121

TOTAL 8,597,320 7,533,059

Teleena Holding B.V., Nieuwegein
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
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December 31, 2017

€ €

December 31, 2016

€ €

LIABILITIES

Group equity  (6) 4,968,010 1,526,035

Provisions  (7) 9,519 26,044

Non-current liabilities  (8) 693,426 739,809

Current liabilities  (9) 2,926,365 5,241,171

TOTAL 8,597,320 7,533,059

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
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2 CONSOLIDATED PROFIT & LOSS ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR 2017

2017

€ €

2016

€ €

Net turnover  (10,11) 12,544,514 16,550,435
Cost of sales  (12) 7,573,498 9,080,166

Gross margin 4,971,016 7,470,269

Expenses

Employee expenses  (13) 5,688,969 5,601,757
Amortisation and depreciation  (14) 1,606,527 1,515,384
Other operating expenses  (15) 5,484,840 3,575,802

12,780,336 10,692,943

Operating result -7,809,320 -3,222,674

Financial income and expenses  (16) -132,582 -107,893

Result before tax -7,941,902 -3,330,567
Taxes  (17) -421,842 631,926

-8,363,744 -2,698,641
Share in result of participating
interests  (18) -274,080 -

Result after tax -8,637,824 -2,698,641

Teleena Holding B.V., Nieuwegein
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
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3 CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR 2017

The cash flow statement has been prepared using the indirect method.

2017

€ €

2016

€ €

Cash flow from operating activities

Operating result -7,809,320 -3,222,674
Adjustments for:
Amortisation and depreciation 1,606,527 1,515,384
Movement of provisions -16,525 -27,796
Movement of working capital:
Stock option expenses -120,197 158,822
Movement of receivables -87,921 1,340,995
Movement of short-term liabilities (excluding
short-term part of long-term debts) -2,355,550 -1,872,932

Cash flow from operating activities -8,782,986 -2,108,201

Interest paid -132,582 -107,893
Corporate income tax 26,574 183,689

-106,008 75,796

Cash flow from operating activities -8,888,994 -2,032,405

Cash flow from investment activities

Investments in intangible fixed assets -997,460 -877,751
Investments in tangible fixed assets -263,783 -527,394

Cash flow from investment activities -1,261,243 -1,405,145

Cash flow from financing activities

Movement of share capital 5,767 -
Movement of share premium reserve 12,488,188 -
Movement of statutory reserves -2,141,856 -
Other movements other reserves 1,847,897 -
Movement non-current liabilities -5,818 307,745

Cash flow from financing activities 12,194,178 307,745

2,043,941 -3,129,805

Teleena Holding B.V., Nieuwegein
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
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Compilation cash

2017

€ €

2016

€ €

Cash and cash equivalents at January 1 63,121 3,192,926

Movement of cash and cash equivalents 2,043,941 -3,129,805

Cash and cash equivalents at December 31 2,107,062 63,121

Teleena Holding B.V., Nieuwegein
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
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4 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GENERAL

Activities

The activities of Teleena Holding B.V., with its registered office in Nieuwegein, and its group companies
mainly consist of providing national and international wholesale mobile telecommunication solutions and
services.

Registered address

The registered and actual address of Teleena Holding B.V. (CoC file 32123709) is Zoomstede 19 in
Nieuwegein.

Group structure

In the consolidated annual report of Teleena Holding B.V. the financial data are included of Teleena Holding
B.V.  and the following group companies:

Teleena Holding B.V., Nieuwegein
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
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LIST OF PARTICIPATING INTERESTS

Teleena Holding B.V. in Nieuwegein is the head of a group of legal entities. The overview of the data as
required in accordance with Articles 2:379 and 2:414 of the Dutch Civil Code is included below:

Name, statutory registered office
Share in

issued capital

%

Included in
consolidation

Teleena Nederland B.V. 100.00 Yes
Nieuwegein

Teleena UK Ltd. 100.00 Yes
London (UK)

Teleena Singapore Pte. Ltd. 100.00 Yes
Singapore

MuCoSo B.V. 100.00 Yes
Nieuwegein

The Company has the following capital interests which have been valued at historical cost or lower market
value:

Name, statutory registered office
Share in

issued capital

%

Airfi Networks UK Ltd. 9.50
Berkshire (UK)

Related parties

All legal entities that can be controlled, jointly controlled or significantly influenced are considered to be a
related party. Also entities which can control the company are considered to be a related party. In addition,
statutory directors, other key management and close relatives are regarded as related parties.

Transactions with related parties are disclosed in the notes insofar as they are not transacted under normal
market conditions. The nature, extent and other information is disclosed if this is necessary in order to
provide the required insight. 

Consolidation principles

The consolidation includes the financial information of Teleena Holding B.V.,  its group companies and other
entities in which it exercises control. Group companies are entities in which Teleena Holding B.V. exercises
direct or indirect control based on a shareholding of more than one half of the voting rights, or of which it
has the authority to govern otherwise their financial and operating policies.

Teleena Holding B.V., Nieuwegein
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
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Section 402, Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code:
Since the income statement of Teleena Holding B.V. is included in the consolidated financial statements, an
abridged income statement has been disclosed (in the company financial statements) in accordance with
Section 402, Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code.

Group companies and other entities in which Teleena Holding B.V. exercises control are consolidated in full.
Participating interests over which no control can be exercised (associates) are not included in the
consolidation.

Intercompany transactions, profits and balances among group companies and other consolidated entities
are eliminated, unless these results are realised through transactions with third parties. Unrealised losses on
intercompany transactions are also eliminated, unless such a loss qualifies as an impairment. The accounting
policies of group companies and other consolidated entities have been changed where necessary, in order to
align them to the prevailing group accounting policies.

GENERAL ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES FOR THE PREPARATION OF THE CONSOLIDATEDANNUAL
ACCOUNTS

The consolidated financial statements are drawn up in accordance with the provisions of Title 9, Book 2 of
the Dutch Civil Code and the firm pronouncements in the Dutch Accounting Standards, as published by the
Dutch Accounting Standards Board ('Raad voor de Jaarverslaggeving').

Assets and liabilities are generally valued at historical cost, production cost or at fair value at the time of
acquisition. If no specific valuation principle has been stated, valuation is at historical cost. In the balance
sheet, income statement and the cash flow statement, references are made to the notes.

Comparison with previous year

The valuation principles and method of determining the result are the same as those used in the previous
year, with the exception of the changes in accounting policies as set out in the relevant sections.

Going concern

The accounting principles applied to the valuation of assets and liabilities and the determination of results in
these financial statements are based on the assumption of continuity of the company. Despite the net
operational loss realized in 2017, Teleena remains fully confident in its ability to build a profitable
organization and the successful continuation of its operations. In 2017, Teleena has implemented cost
measures to significantly reduce its operational expenses and to bring its costs base more in line with its
existing revenue levels. Teleena forecasts that revenue will be growing again as of 2018 mainly because of
its increased business with TCL which will start to compensate for the loss of revenue related to two major
customers leaving due to insourcing and mergers. Teleena expects to regain profitability and become
cashflow positive latest in 2019.

Teleena is in discussions with the shareholders to arrange for additional funding. The shareholders have
expressed their willingness to provide such further financing.

Teleena Holding B.V., Nieuwegein
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Change in accounting estimates applied for revenue recognition of implementation fees

Until 31 December 2016, revenue from implementation fees were recognised based on the duration of the
wholesalers contract. As of the current period (2017), the revenu of implementation fees is recognized upon
effective date of the actual implementation. The accrual relating to this deferred revenu from
implementation fees as per 31 december 2016 amounts EUR 638k. This deferred revenu is fully recognised
in the current period (2017). In addition, an amount of EUR 725k is recognized as implementation fees based
on implementations with an effective date in the current year (2017). No deferred revenu accrual relating to
implementation fees is present as per 31 December 2017.
These changes in accounting estimates have a positive impact of approximately EUR 281k on the net
turnover.

Estimates

In applying the principles and policies for drawing up the financial statements, the directors of Teleena
Holding B.V. make different estimates and judgments that may be essential to the amounts disclosed in the
financial statements. If it is necessary in order to provide the transparency required under Book 2, article
362, paragraph 1, the nature of these estimates and judgments, including related assumptions, is disclosed
in the notes to the relevant financial statement item.

Leasing

Financial leasing:
The Company leases some of the assets, whereby it retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of these assets. These assets are recognised on the balance sheet upon commencement of the
lease contract at the lower of the fair value of the asset or the discounted value of the minimum lease
payments. The lease instalments to be paid are divided into a repayment and an interest portion, using the
annuity method. The liabilities under the lease, excluding the interest payments, are included under long-
term debts. The interest component is included in the income statement for the duration of the contract on
the basis of a fixed interest percentage of the average remaining redemption component. The assets are
depreciated over the remaining economic life or, if shorter, the duration of the contract.

Operational leasing:
The Company may have lease contracts whereby a large part of the risks and rewards associated with
ownership are not for the benefit of nor incurred by the Company. The lease contracts are recognised as
operational leasing. Lease payments are recorded on a straight-line basis, taking into account
reimbursements received from the lessor, in the income statement for the duration of the contract.

Translation of foreign currency

Functional currency:
Items included in the consolidated financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the respective group companies operate (the functional currency). The
consolidated financial statements are presented in euros, which is the functional and presentation currency
of Teleena Holding B.V.

Teleena Holding B.V., Nieuwegein
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Transactions, receivables and liabilities:
Transactions in foreign currencies are stated in the consolidated financial statements at the exchange rate of
the functional currency on the transaction date. Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are
converted to the closing rate of the functional currency on the balance sheet date. The translation
differences resulting from settlement and conversion are credited or charged to the profit and loss account,
unless hedge-accounting is applied. Non-monetary assets valued at historical cost in a foreign currency are
converted at the exchange rate on the transaction date. Non-monetary assets valued at fair value in a
foreign currency are converted at the exchange rate on the date on which the fair value was determined.

PRINCIPLES OF VALUATION OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Intangible fixed assets

Intangible fixed assets are presented at historical cost less accumulated amortisation and, if applicable, less
impairments in value. Amortisation is charged as a fixed percentage of cost, as specified in more detail in the
notes to the balance sheet. The useful life and the amortisation method are reassessed at the end of each
financial year.

Tangible fixed assets

Tangible fixed assets are presented at acquisition price less cumulative depreciation and, if applicable, less
impairments in value. Depreciation is based on the estimated useful life and calculated as a fixed percentage
of cost, taking into account any residual value. Depreciation is provided from the date an asset comes into
use.

Teleena Holding B.V., Nieuwegein
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
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Financial fixed assets

Participations:
Participations (associates), over which significant influence can be exercised, are valued according to the net
asset value method. In the event that 20% or more of the voting rights can be exercised, it may be assumed
that there is significant influence.

The net asset value is calculated in accordance with the accounting principles that apply for these financial
statements; with regard to participations in which insufficient data is available for adopting these principles,
the valuation principles of the respective participation are applied.

If the valuation of an associate based on the net asset value is negative, it will be stated at € 1. If and insofar
as the Company can be held fully or partially liable for the debts of the associate, or has the firm intention of
enabling the participation to settle its debts, a provision is recognised for this.

The amount by which the carrying amount of the associate has changed since the previous financial
statements as a result of the net result achieved by the associate is recognised in the income statement.
In the event of an impairment loss, valuation takes place at the realisable value (see also section 
"Impairment of non-current assets"); an impairment is recognised and charged to the income statement.

Deferred tax assets:
Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences between the value of the assets
and liabilities under tax regulations on the one hand and the accounting policies used in these financial
statements on the other, on the understanding that deferred tax assets are only recognised insofar as it is
probable that future taxable profits will be available to offset the temporary differences and available tax
losses. The calculation of the deferred tax assets is based on the tax rates prevailing at the end of the
reporting year or the rates applicable in future years, to the extent that they have already been enacted by
law.

Deferred income taxes are recognised at nominal value.

Teleena Holding B.V., Nieuwegein
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Impairment of non-current assets

On each balance sheet date, the company assesses whether there are any indications that a fixed asset may
be subject to impairment. If there are such indications, the realisable value of the asset is determined. If it is
not possible to determine the realisable value of the individual asset, the realisable value of the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs is determined. An impairment occurs when the carrying amount
of an asset is higher than the realisable value; the realisable value is the higher of the fair value less cost to
sell and the value in use. An impairment loss is directly recognised in the income statement while the
carrying amount of the asset concerned is concurrently reduced.

The realisable value is initially based on a binding sale agreement; if there is no such agreement, the
realisable value is determined based on the active market, whereby usually the prevailing bid price is taken
as market price.

If it is established that an impairment that was recognised in the past no longer exists or has reduced, the
increased carrying amount of the asset concerned is set no higher than the carrying amount that would have
been determined if no impairment value adjustment for the asset concerned had been reported.

The Company assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset
or a group of financial assets is impaired. If any such evidence exists, the impairment loss is determined and
recognised in the income statement.

The amount of an impairment loss incurred on financial assets stated at amortised cost is measured as the
difference between the asset's carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the financial asset's original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate computed at
initial recognition). If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss shall be reversed. The reversal shall not result in a carrying amount of
the financial asset that exceeds what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been
recognised at the date the impairment is reversed. The amount of the reversal shall be recognised through
profit or loss.

If an impairment loss has been incurred on an investment in an equity instrument carried at cost, the
amount of the impairment loss is measured as the difference between the carrying amount of the financial
asset and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the current market rate of return
for a similar financial asset. The impairment loss shall be reversed only if the evidence of impairment is
objectively shown to have been removed.

Other receivables, accruals and prepayments

Upon initial recognition the receivables on and loans to participations and other receivables are valued at
fair value and then valued at amortised cost, which equals the face value, after deduction of any provisions.
The fair value and amortised cost equal the face value. Any provisions for the risk of doubtful debts are
deducted. These provisions are determined based on individual assessment of the receivables.
The (remaining) maturity is less than one year. 

Teleena Holding B.V., Nieuwegein
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Cash and cash equivalents

The cash is valued at face value. If cash equivalents are not freely disposable, then this has been taken into
account in the valuation.

Provisions

Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the amount that is necessary to settle the obligation as per
the balance sheet date. Provisions are carried at the nominal value of the expenditure that is expected to be
necessary in order to settle the obligation, unless stated otherwise.

Deferred tax liability

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for temporary differences between the value of the assets and
liabilities under tax regulations on the one hand and the book values applied in these financial statements on
the other. The computation of the deferred tax liabilities is based on the tax rates prevailing at the end of
the reporting year or the rates applicable in future years, to the extent that they have already been enacted
by law.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences arising on investments in group companies,
associates and joint ventures, except where the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference is
controlled by Teleena Holding B.V. and it is probably that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Deferred tax balances are valued at nominal value.

Non-current liabilities

On initial recognition non-current liabilities are recognised at fair value. Transaction costs which can be
directly attributed to the acquisition of the non-current liabilities are included in the initial recognition. After
initial recognition non-current liabilities are recognised at the amortised cost price, being the amount
received taking into account premiums or discounts and minus transaction costs.

The difference between stated book value and the mature redemption value is accounted for as interest
cost in the income statement on the basis of the effective interest rate during the estimated term of the
non-current liabilities.

Current liabilities

On initial recognition current liabilities are recognised at fair value. After initial recognition current liabilities
are recognised at the amortised cost price, being the amount received, taking into account premiums or
discounts, less transaction costs. This usually is the nominal value.
All current liabilities fall due in less than one year.

Teleena Holding B.V., Nieuwegein
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PRINCIPLES FOR THE DETERMINATION OF THE RESULT

General

The result is defined as the difference between the revenue from goods delivered and services performed
on one hand and, on the other hand, the costs and expenses for that year, valued at historical costs.

Net turnover

Net turnover comprises the income from the supply of services and realised income from contracts after
deduction of discounts and such like and of taxes levied on the turnover. Net turnover is recognised in
proportion to the services delivered, based on the services rendered up to the balance sheet date in
proportion to the total of services to be rendered.

Cost of sales

Cost of sales represents direct and indirect expenses attributable to net turnover.

Other operating expenses

Other operating expenses comprise costs chargeable to the year that are not directly attributable to the cost
of the services sold.

Employee expenses

Employee expenses (wages, salaries, social security contributions, etc.) are presented as a separate item in
the income statement. Employee expenses are charged to the profit and loss account based on the terms of
employment, where they are due to employees and the tax authorities respectively.

Amortisation and depreciation

Intangible assets are amortised and tangible fixed assets are depreciated over their estimated useful lives as
from the moment they are ready for use. 

Financial income and expenses

Interest income and expenses are recognised on a pro rata basis, taking account of the effective interest rate
of the assets and liabilities to which they relate. In accounting for interest expenses, the recognised
transaction expenses for loans received are taken into consideration. Currency translation differences arising
upon the settlement or conversion of monetary items are recognised in the income statement in the period
that they are realised.

Share in result of participating interests

The result is the amount by which the carrying amount of the participations has changed since the previous
financial statements as a result of the earnings achieved by the participation to the extent that this can be
attributed to Teleena Holding B.V.

Teleena Holding B.V., Nieuwegein
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Taxes

Tax on the result is calculated based on the result before tax in the profit and loss account, taking account of
the losses available for set-off from previous financial years  and exempt profit components and after the
addition of non-deductible costs.

PRINCIPLES FOR PREPARATION OF THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

The cash flow statement has been prepared using the indirect method.

The cash items disclosed in the cash flow statement comprise cash at banks and in hand. Cash flows
denominated in foreign currencies have been translated at average estimated exchange rates. Interest paid
and received, dividends received and income taxes are included in cash from operating activities.

Dividends paid are recognised as cash used in financing activities.

The purchase consideration paid for the acquired group company has been recognised as cash used in
investing activities where it was settled in cash. Any cash at banks and in hand in the acquired group
company have been deducted from the purchase consideration.

Transactions not resulting in inflow or outflow of cash, including finance leases, are not recognised in the
cash flow statement. Payments of finance lease instalments qualify as repayments of borrowings under cash
used in financing activities and as interest paid under cash generated from operating activities.

Teleena Holding B.V., Nieuwegein
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
- 22 -

___________________________________________________________________________________________________________
52. Teleena Holding B.V. 566



5 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2017

ASSETS

FIXED ASSETS

1. Intangible fixed assets

Network
and

software

€

Goodwill

€

Total

€

Carrying amount as of January 1, 2017
Purchase price 7,293,221 150,000 7,443,221
Cumulative amortization and impairment -4,421,334 -101,250 -4,522,584

2,871,887 48,750 2,920,637

Movement
Investments 997,460 - 997,460
Disposals -509,522 - -509,522
Depreciation disposals 509,522 - 509,522
Amortization -1,147,770 -15,000 -1,162,770

-150,310 -15,000 -165,310

Carrying amount as of December 31, 2017
Purchase price 7,781,159 150,000 7,931,159
Cumulative amortization and impairment -5,059,582 -116,250 -5,175,832

2,721,577 33,750 2,755,327

Amortisation rates
%

Network and software  20
Goodwill  10
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2. Tangible fixed assets

Network
equipment

€

Other fixed
assets

€

Total

€

Carrying amount as of January 1, 2017
Purchase price 2,271,373 252,369 2,523,742
Cumulative depreciation and impairment -1,401,075 -155,242 -1,556,317

870,298 97,127 967,425

Movement
Investments 197,828 65,955 263,783
Disposals - -57,367 -57,367
Depreciation disposals - 57,367 57,367
Depreciation -372,335 -71,422 -443,757

-174,507 -5,467 -179,974

Carrying amount as of December 31, 2017
Purchase price 2,469,201 260,957 2,730,158
Cumulative depreciation and impairment -1,773,410 -169,297 -1,942,707

695,791 91,660 787,451

Depreciation rates
%

Network equipment  20
Other fixed assets  20-33

3. Financial fixed assets

12/31/2017

€

12/31/2016

€

Other participating interests

Airfi Networks UK Ltd. at Berkshire (UK) (9,5%) - 274,080

Other receivables

Deferred tax asset - 448,237
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As per 31 December 2017, total tax loss carry forward amounts € 9,7 milion. Due to the uncertainty relating
to future profitability to compensate for these losses, no deferred tax asset is recognized as per 31
december 2017. 

CURRENT ASSETS

The fair value of the receivables approximates the carrying amount due to their short-term character and
the fact that provisions for bad debt are recognised, where necessary.

12/31/2017

€

12/31/2016

€

4. Receivables

Trade receivables 1,476,569 906,585
Corporate income tax 179,138 -
Taxes and social securities 268,386 268,505
Other receivables and prepayments 1,023,387 1,684,469

2,947,480 2,859,559

Trade receivables

Trade debtors 1,818,316 1,225,374
Provision for bad debt -341,747 -318,789

1,476,569 906,585

Corporate income tax

Corporate income tax 179,138 -

Taxes and social securities

Turnover tax 268,386 268,505

Other receivables and prepayments

Deposits and other receivables 116,547 67,394
Prepayments and accrued income 906,840 1,617,075

1,023,387 1,684,469
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12/31/2017

€

12/31/2016

€

5. Cash and cash equivalents

ABN AMRO Bank N.V. 259,642 22,704
ABN AMRO Bank N.V. - deposit 1,847,420 40,417

2,107,062 63,121

An amount of € 47,420 (2016: € 39,716) is not freely disposable as guarantee for the building rental
agreement.
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6. Group equity

Please refer to the notes to the Company balance sheet on page 41 of this report for an explanation of the
equity.

12/31/2017

€

12/31/2016

€

7. Provisions

Deferred tax liability 9,519 26,044

Deferred tax liability

This provision concerns the temporary differences between the valuation in the annual account and the tax
valuation of assets and liabilities. The provision is calculated based on the applicable tax rate of 20,00%.

2017

€

2016

€

Carrying amount as of January 1 26,044 53,840
Movement -16,525 -27,796

Carrying amount as of December 31 9,519 26,044

12/31/2017

€

12/31/2016

€

8. Non-current liabilities

Subordinated loans 513,064 482,064
Financial lease liabilities 180,362 257,745

693,426 739,809

Subordinated loans

Subordinated loan shareholder A 320,886 320,886
Subordinated loan shareholder B 111,178 111,178
Subordinated loan shareholder C - 25,000
Subordinated loan shareholder D 81,000 25,000

513,064 482,064

The interest on the loans is 7% and is paid-out on a monthly basis. There aren't any defined repayment
obligations on the subordinated loans, it's possible for the shareholders to define when and how the debt
will be redeemed.
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12/31/2017

€

12/31/2016

€

Financial lease liabilities

De Lage Landen 180,362 257,745

 The repayment takes place in monthly instalments. The interest-rate is between 0% and 2% and is fixed
during the underlying maturity of the financial lease agreements. The remaining maturity of the outstanding
balance per December 31, 2017 is shorter than 5 years.

9. Current liabilities

Repayment obligation non-current liabilities 199,939 159,194
Trade creditors 1,225,149 2,194,774
Corporate income tax 2,596 12,410
Taxes and social securities 153,206 359,452
Other liabilities, accruals and deferred income 1,345,475 2,515,341

2,926,365 5,241,171

The fair value of the current liabilities approximates the book value due to their short-term character. All
current liabilities fall due in less than one year.

Repayment obligation non-current liabilities

Financial lease liabilities 199,939 159,194

Payables to group companies

No interest has been calculated. With regards to repayments and securities no agreements have been made.

Taxes and social securities

Wage tax 153,206 359,452

Other liabilities, accruals and deferred income

Accruals and deferred income 1,345,475 2,515,341
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CONTINGENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Contingent liabilities

Credit facility

Teleena Holding B.V. and its group companies are severally and jointly liable to the lending institutions. The
Company has a credit facility amounting to € 500,000 as of July 2015. For the credit facility securities have
been given by securing all current and future stock, inventory and receivables.

Long-term financial obligations

Investment commitments

Per balance sheet date, the Company has outstanding purchase commitments amounting to € 90,664 (2016:
€ 99,700).

Lease commitments

Minimum total lease payments arising under non-cancellable operating leases amount to approximately
€ 218,583 (2016: € 175,891):
< 1 year: € 81,349 (2016: € 102,915);
2 - 5 years: € 137,234 (2016: € 72,976);
> 5 years: € nil (2016: € nil).

Rental commitments

The group leases office space of which the minimum annual rental payments amount to € 190,501. The
Company provided a bank guarantee of € 47,420 (2016: € 39,716) relating to the lease of this office space.
The lease is for a period of 5 years ending May 2022, with an option to renew for another period of 5 years.

Other financial commitment

The Company has signed a licenses subscription contract, initially amounting to € 1,041,130 (USD 1,265,625)
for a period of 5 years. The annual payments amount to € 208,225 (USD 253,125) and ends in September
2018.
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6 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED PROFIT & LOSS ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR 2017

10. Net turnover
The revenues decreased in 2017 compared to 2016 with 24.2 %.

2017

€

2016

€

11. Net turnover

Traffic 8,013,920 9,240,970
Services 4,530,594 7,309,465

12,544,514 16,550,435

12. Cost of sales

Traffic 5,751,678 6,676,950
Services 1,821,820 2,403,216

7,573,498 9,080,166

13. Employee expenses

Wages and salaries 5,203,671 4,888,148
Social security charges 691,463 623,844
Capitalised hours and S&O grants -85,968 -69,057
Provision stock option plan -120,197 158,822

5,688,969 5,601,757

Emoluments of directors and supervisory directors

The total remuneration of the executive and non-executive directors of the Company (including pension
obligations) which were charged in 2017 amount to € 470.405 (2016: € 426.750).

Staff

At the Company during 2017, on average 69 employees were employed (2016: 65). Of these 2 were
employed outside The Netherlands (2016: 2).

14. Amortisation and depreciation

Intangible fixed assets 1,162,770 1,067,573
Tangible fixed assets 443,757 447,811

1,606,527 1,515,384

Amortisation of intangible fixed assets

Network and software 1,147,770 1,052,573
Goodwill 15,000 15,000

1,162,770 1,067,573
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2017

€

2016

€

Depreciation of tangible fixed assets

Network equipment 372,335 383,421
Other fixed assets 71,422 64,390

443,757 447,811

15. Other operating expenses

Other personnel expenses 402,321 327,650
Housing and office expenses 384,933 396,520
Travel and entertainment expenses 556,069 456,829
Selling expenses 103,965 156,072
Consultancy and advisory expenses 4,014,594 2,176,103
General expenses 22,958 62,628

5,484,840 3,575,802

16. Financial income and expenses

Interest and similar income 1,455 8,415
Interest and similar expenses -134,037 -116,308

-132,582 -107,893

Interest and similar income

Interest income bank 1,455 8,415

Interest and similar expenses

Interest expenses bank -15,912 -11,852
Interest expenses subordinated loans -34,071 -33,744
Other interest expenses and payment differences -42,251 -45,483
Exchange-rate differences -41,803 -25,229

-134,037 -116,308

17. Taxes

Corporate income tax 26,395 183,689
Movement of deferred tax liabilities -448,237 448,237

-421,842 631,926

18. Share in result of participating interests

Impairment of Airfi Networks UK Ltd. -274,080 -
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7 COMPANY BALANCE SHEET AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2017
(before appropriation of results)

December 31, 2017

€ €

December 31, 2016

€ €

ASSETS

Fixed assets

Intangible fixed assets  (19) 2,435,619 2,871,887

Tangible fixed assets  (20) 665,456 870,298

Financial fixed assets  (21) 82,226 895,696

Current assets

Receivables  (22) 1,291,118 953,697

Cash and cash equivalents  (23) 1,883,277 -

TOTAL 6,357,696 5,591,578
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December 31, 2017

€ €

December 31, 2016

€ €

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Equity  (24)

Share capital 33,684 27,917
Share premium reserve 14,636,146 2,147,958
Stock option reserve 38,625 158,822
Legal reserves 606,286 -
Statutory reserves - 2,141,856
Other reserves -1,708,907 -251,877
Unappropriated result -8,637,824 -2,698,641

4,968,010 1,526,035

Provisions  (25) 9,519 26,044

Non-current liabilities  (26) 693,426 739,809

Current liabilities  (27) 686,741 3,299,690

TOTAL 6,357,696 5,591,578
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8 COMPANY PROFIT & LOSS ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR 2017

2017

€

2016

€

Share in result of participations in group companies -5,345,021 -553,783
Company result after tax -3,292,803 -2,144,858

Result after tax -8,637,824 -2,698,641
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9 NOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The company annual accounts have been prepared in accordance with Title 9 Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code.

For the general principles for the preparation of the annual account, the principles for valuation of assets
and liabilities and determination of the result, as well as for the notes to the specific assets and liabilities and
the results, reference is made to the notes to the consolidated annual account, if there is no further
explanation provided.

Financial fixed assets

Participating interests in group companies where extensive influence is exerted on business and financial
policies are valued based on the net capital value that is, however, not lower than € 1. This net capital value
is calculated based on the principles of Teleena Holding B.V.

Participating interests with a negative net capital value are valued at € 1. When the company guarantees 
(wholly or partially) debts of the participating interest concerned, a provision is created primarily at the
expense of claims against this participating interest and for the remainder under the provisions of the
remaining part in the losses of the participating interest or the expected payments by the company on
behalf of these participating interests.
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10 NOTES TO THE COMPANY BALANCE SHEET AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2017

ASSETS

FIXED ASSETS

19. Intangible fixed assets

Network
and

software

€

Carrying amount as of January 1, 2017
Purchase price 7,293,221
Cumulative amortization and impairment -4,421,334

2,871,887

Movement
Investments 711,502
Disposals -509,522
Depreciation disposals 509,522
Amortization -1,147,770

-436,268

Carrying amount as of December 31, 2017
Purchase price 7,495,201
Cumulative amortization and impairment -5,059,582

2,435,619

Amortisation rates
%

Network and software  20
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20. Tangible fixed assets

Network
equipment

€

Carrying amount as of January 1, 2017
Purchase price 2,271,373
Cumulative depreciation and impairment -1,401,075

870,298

Movement
Investments 167,493
Depreciation -372,335

-204,842

Carrying amount as of December 31, 2017
Purchase price 2,438,866
Cumulative depreciation and impairment -1,773,410

665,456

Depreciation rates
%

Network equipment  20

21. Financial fixed assets

12/31/2017

€

12/31/2016

€

Participations in group companies

Teleena Nederland B.V.  at Nieuwegein (100%) 1 129,590
Teleena UK Ltd. at London (UK) (100%) 50,875 43,986
Teleena Singapore Pte. Ltd. at Singapore (100%) 32,975 -
MuCoSo B.V. at Nieuwegein (100%) -1,625 -197

82,226 173,379
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2017

€

2016

€

Teleena Nederland B.V. 

Carrying amount as of January 1 129,590 694,891
Share in result -5,080,039 -565,301

-4,950,449 129,590
Provision 4,950,450 -

Carrying amount as of December 31 1 129,590

Teleena UK Ltd.

Carrying amount as of January 1 43,986 36,806
Exchange difference -2,670 -4,453
Share in result 9,559 11,633

Carrying amount as of December 31 50,875 43,986

Teleena Singapore Pte. Ltd.

Carrying amount as of January 1 - -
Investments 23,251 -
Exchange difference 8,757 -
Share in result 967 -

Carrying amount as of December 31 32,975 -

MuCoSo B.V.

Carrying amount as of January 1 -197 -82
Share in result -1,428 -115

Carrying amount as of December 31 -1,625 -197

12/31/2017

€

12/31/2016

€

Other participating interests

Airfi Networks UK Ltd. at Berkshire (UK) (9,5%) - 274,080

Other receivables

Deferred tax asset - 448,237

As per 31 December 2017, total tax loss carry forward amounts € 9,7 milion. Due to the uncertainty relating
to future profitability to compensate for these losses, no deferred tax asset is recognized as per 31
december 2017. 
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CURRENT ASSETS

The fair value of the receivables approximates the carrying amount due to their short-term character and
the fact that provisions for bad debt are recognised, where necessary.

12/31/2017

€

12/31/2016

€

22. Receivables

Trade receivables - 45,314
Receivables from group companies 530,459 303,775
Corporate income tax 179,138 -
Taxes and social securities 122,271 -
Other receivables and prepayments 459,250 604,608

1,291,118 953,697

Receivables from group companies

Teleena Nederland B.V. 168,670 -
Teleena UK Ltd. - 303,527
Teleena Singapore Pte. Ltd. 356,171 -
MuCoSo B.V. 5,618 248

530,459 303,775

No interest has been calculated. With regards to repayments and securities no agreements have been made.

The nominal value of the receivable from group company Teleena Nederland B.V. amounts € 5,119,120. Net
equity of Teleena Nederland B.V. as per 31 december 2017 amounts -/- € 4,950,449. Teleena Holding B.V.
has included a provision equal to the net equity value of Teleena Nederland B.V., resulting in a net receivable
of € 168,670. 

Taxes and social securities

Turnover tax 122,271 -

Other receivables and prepayments

Deposits and other receivables 90,664 64,859
Prepayments and accrued income 368,586 539,749

459,250 604,608
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12/31/2017

€

12/31/2016

€

23. Cash and cash equivalents

ABN AMRO Bank N.V. 83,277 -
ABN AMRO Bank N.V. - deposit 1,800,000 -

1,883,277 -
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EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

24. Equity

12/31/2017

€

12/31/2016

€

Share capital

Subscribed and paid up 1,122,812 ordinary shares at par value € 0.03 33,684 27,917

2017

€

2016

€

Share premium reserve

Carrying amount as of January 1 2,147,958 2,147,958
Movement 12,488,188 -

Carrying amount as of December 31 14,636,146 2,147,958

Stock option reserve

Carrying amount as of January 1 158,822 -
Movement -120,197 158,822

Carrying amount as of December 31 38,625 158,822

12/31/2017

€

12/31/2016

€

Legal reserves

Reserve for research and development 606,286 -

2017

€

2016

€

Reserve for research and development

Carrying amount as of January 1 - -
Allocation 606,286 -

Carrying amount as of December 31 606,286 -
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2017

€

2016

€

Other reserves

Carrying amount as of January 1 -251,877 -1,039,608
Allocation of previous financial year net result -2,698,641 787,731
Allocation legal and statutory reserves -606,286 -
Other movements other reserves 1,847,897 -

Carrying amount as of December 31 -1,708,907 -251,877

Unappropriated result

Carrying amount as of January 1 -2,698,641 787,731
Net result of the financial year -8,637,824 -2,698,641
Allocation of previous financial year net result 2,698,641 -787,731

Carrying amount as of December 31 -8,637,824 -2,698,641

12/31/2017

€

12/31/2016

€

25. Provisions

Deferred tax liability 9,519 26,044

Deferred tax liability

This provision concerns the temporary differences between the valuation in the annual account and the tax
valuation of assets and liabilities. The provision is calculated based on the applicable tax rate of 20,00%.

2017

€

2016

€

Carrying amount as of January 1 26,044 53,840
Movement -16,525 -27,796

Carrying amount as of December 31 9,519 26,044
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12/31/2017

€

12/31/2016

€

26. Non-current liabilities

Subordinated loans 513,064 482,064
Financial lease liabilities 180,362 257,745

693,426 739,809

27. Current liabilities

Debt to financial institutions - 199,831
Repayment obligation non-current liabilities 199,939 159,194
Trade creditors 422,903 682,873
Payables to group companies 5,509 1,870,774
Corporate income tax - 9,502
Other liabilities, accruals and deferred income 58,390 377,516

686,741 3,299,690

The fair value of the current liabilities approximates the book value due to their short-term character. All
current liabilities fall due in less than one year.

Debt to financial institutions

ABN AMRO Bank N.V. - 199,831

Repayment obligation non-current liabilities

Financial lease liabilities 199,939 159,194

Payables to group companies

Teleena Nederland B.V. - 1,870,774
Teleena UK Ltd. 5,509 -

5,509 1,870,774

No interest has been calculated. With regards to repayments and securities no agreements have been made.

Other liabilities, accruals and deferred income

Accruals and deferred income 58,390 377,516
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CONTINGENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Contingent liabilities

Tax entity

The company constitutes a tax entity for corporate income tax with Teleena Nederland B.V. and MuCoSo
B.V. Consequently the company is severally liable for the resulting debts.

The company constitutes a tax entity for value added tax with Teleena Nederland B.V. Consequently the
company is severally liable for the resulting debts.
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11 NOTES TO THE COMPANY PROFIT & LOSS ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR 2017

Staff

During the 2017 financial year the company had no employees.

28. Share in result of participating interests

2017

€

2016

€

Share in result of Teleena Nederland B.V. -5,080,039 -565,301
Share in result of Teleena UK Ltd. 9,559 11,633
Share in result of Teleena Singapore Pte. Ltd. 967 -
Share in result of MuCoSo B.V. -1,428 -115
Impairment of Airfi Networks UK Ltd. -274,080 -

-5,345,021 -553,783
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12 OTHER DISCLOSURE

Post balance sheet events

There are no post balance sheet events.

Recognition of the loss for 2017

In accordance with the legal provisions, the loss of € 8,637,824 for 2017  in the 2018 financial year will be
deducted from the other reserves.
Awaiting the approval by the General Meeting, this proposition has not been processed in the annual
account and is, therefore, included in the undistributed result entry.

Signing of the financial statements

Nieuwegein, May 16, 2018

On behalf of,

K. Bybjerg
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OTHER INFORMATION

52. Teleena Holding B.V. 592



OTHER INFORMATION

1 Provisions of the Articles of Association relating to profit appropriation

The articles of association stipulate in accordance with article 16, that the annual result obtained is at the
free disposal of the General Meeting. The holders of the shares are entitled to a dividend distribution on the
shares held by them, if and insofar as the annual profit is adequate.

2 Recognition of the loss for 2017

In accordance with the legal provisions, the loss of € 8,637,824 for 2017  in the 2018 financial year will be
deducted from the other reserves.
Awaiting the approval by the General Meeting, this proposition has not been processed in the annual
account and is, therefore, included in the undistributed result entry.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT  

 

To: The shareholders and the supervisory board of Teleena Holding B.V.  

  

A. Report on the audit of the financial statements 2017 included in the annual report 

 

Our opinion 

We have audited the financial statements 2017 of Teleena Holding B.V., based in Nieuwegein. 

 
In our opinion the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position 
of Teleena Holding B.V. as at 31 December 2017, and of its result for 2017 in accordance with Part 9 of 
Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code. 
 

The financial statements comprise:  

1. the consolidated and company balance sheet as at 31 December 2017; 
2. the consolidated and company profit and loss account for 2017; and 
3. the notes comprising a summary of the accounting policies and other explanatory information. 

 

Basis for our opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with Dutch law, including the Dutch Standards on Auditing. Our 
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the ‘Our responsibilities for the audit 
of the financial statements’ section of our report.  
 
We are independent of Teleena Holding B.V. in accordance with the Verordening inzake de 
onafhankelijkheid van accountants bij assurance-opdrachten (ViO, Code of Ethics for Professional 
Accountants, a regulation with respect to independence) and other relevant independence regulations 
in the Netherlands. Furthermore we have complied with the Verordening gedrags- en beroepsregels 
accountants (VGBA, Dutch Code of Ethics). 
 
We believe the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our opinion. 
 
Material uncertainty related to going concern  

We draw attention to the going concern paragraph in the notes of the financial statements which 
indicates that the company is seeking for additional funding. The company is in discussion with its 
shareholders to arrange for this additional funding. Shareholders have expressed their willingness to 
provide such further financing. These conditions indicate the existence of a material uncertainty which 
may cast significant doubt about the company's ability to continue as a going concern. Our opinion is 
not modified in respect of this matter. 
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B. Report on the other information included in the annual report 

 

In addition to the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon, the annual report contains 

other information that consists of: 

 The directors’ report; 

 Other information as required by Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code. 

Based on the following procedures performed, we conclude that the other information: 

 is consistent with the financial statements and does not contain material misstatements; 

 contains the information as required by Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code.  
 
We have read the other information. Based on our knowledge and understanding obtained through 
our audit of the financial statements or otherwise, we have considered whether the other information 
contains material misstatements. 
 
By performing these procedures, we comply with the requirements of Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch 
Civil Code and the Dutch Standard 720. The scope of the procedures performed is substantially less 
than the scope of those performed in our audit of the financial statements. 
 
Management is responsible for the preparation of the directors’ report in accordance with Part 9 of 

Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code and other information as required by Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil 

Code.  

 
C. Description of responsibilities regarding the financial statements 

 

Responsibilities of management for the financial statements  

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in 
accordance with Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code. Furthermore, management is responsible for 
such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of the 
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
As part of the preparation of the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the 
company’s ability to continue as a going concern. Based on the financial reporting framework 
mentioned, management should prepare the financial statements using the going concern basis of 
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the company or to cease operations, or has 
no realistic alternative but to do so.  
 

Management should disclose events and circumstances that may cast significant doubt on the 
company’s ability to continue as a going concern in the financial statements.  
 

Our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements  

Our objective is to plan and perform the audit assignment in a manner that allows us to obtain 
sufficient and appropriate audit evidence for our opinion.   
 
Our audit has been performed with a high, but not absolute, level of assurance, which means we may 
not detect all material errors and fraud during our audit.  
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Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the 
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on 
the basis of these financial statements. The materiality affects the nature, timing and extent of our 
audit procedures and the evaluation of the effect of identified misstatements on our opinion. 
 
We have exercised professional judgement and have maintained professional skepticism throughout 
the audit, in accordance with Dutch Standards on Auditing, ethical requirements and independence 
requirements. Our audit included among others:  

• Identifying and assessing the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, 

whether due to fraud or error, designing and performing audit procedures responsive to  

• those risks, and obtaining audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 

for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher 

than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional 

omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control; 

• Obtaining an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 

procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing 

an opinion on the effectiveness of the company’s internal control; 

• Evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 

accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management; 

• Concluding on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of 

accounting, and based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists 

related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the company’s ability to 

continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required 

to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements 

or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the 

audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or 

conditions may cause a company to cease to continue as a going concern; 

• Evaluating the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, 

including the disclosures; and  

• Evaluating whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events 

in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned 
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant findings in internal 
control that we identify during our audit. 
 

‘s-Hertogenbosch, 16 May 2018 

Q-Concepts Accountancy B.V. 

 

 

 

C.J. Pijnenburg RA 
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STT Global Data Centres India Private Limited

Currency in Indian Rupees
₹ in lakhs

As at As at
31 March 2018 31 March 2017

A ASSETS
1 Non-current assets

(a) Property, plant and equipment 3 75,375.25   74,378.50    
(b) Capital work-in-progress 1,653.92   2,596.93   
(c) Other intangible assets 4 80.04   120.92    
(d) Financial assets

(i) Other financial assets 5 604.89    108.82    
(e) Deferred tax assets (net) 6 2,986.40   1,958.21   
(f) Other tax assets (net) 3,603.56   5,575.71   
(g) Other non-current assets 7A 5,304.20   926.27    

Total non-current assets 89,608.26   85,665.36    

2 Current assets
(a) Financial assets

(i) Investments 8 17,693.89   10,700.18    
(ii) Trade receivables 9 17,267.28   9,339.56   
(iii) Cash and cash equivalents 10 1,605.91   1,338.23   
(iv) Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 11 -   2,292.34   
(v) Unbilled recievables 6,038.28   5,029.11   

(b) Other current assets 7B 1,031.75   1,929.65   
Total current assets 43,637.11   30,629.07    

Total assets 1,33,245.37  1,16,294.43   

B EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
I Equity

(a) Equity share capital 12 1.00   1.00    
(b) Other equity 13 18,924.47   12,238.69    

Total equity 18,925.47   12,239.69    

II Liabilities
1 Non-current liabilities

(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 14 78,337.48   78,923.64    
(ii) Other financial liabilities 15A 39.70   26.34    

(b) Provisions 16A 317.28    275.94    
(c) Other non-current liabilities 17A 3,072.02   3,845.30   

Total non-current liabilities 81,766.48   83,071.22    

2 Current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities

(i) Trade payables 18 18,720.98   8,966.78   
(ii) Other financial liabilities 15B 11,233.96   7,812.20   

(b) Other current liabilities 17B 2,532.84   4,179.39   
(c) Provisions 16B 65.64   25.15    

Total current liabilities 32,553.42   20,983.52    

Total equity and liabilities 1,33,245.37  1,16,294.43   

Significant accounting policies 2
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements 1 to 38

As per our report of even date attached

For B S R & Co. LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants

Glenn D'souza Sumit Mukhija Bruno Lopez
Partner Chief Executive Officer Director
Membership no. : 112554 DIN : 07554875

Tri Pham Bimal Khandelwal
Director CFO
DIN : 06746192

MUMBAI MUMBAI
DATED: 18 Jun 2018 DATED: 18 Jun 2018

(formerly known as Tata Communications Data Centers Private Limited)

Balance Sheet

Note

as at 31 March 2018
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for the year ended 31 March 2018

Currency in Indian Rupees
₹ in lakhs

 For the year ended 

31 March 2018 31 March 2017

I Revenue from operations 86,832.84   73,765.80   

II Other income 19 1,537.52     589.93   
III Total Income (I + II) 88,370.36   74,355.73   

IV EXPENSES:
Operating and other expenses 20 51,919.76   47,125.56   
Employee benefits expense 21 3,383.41   2,578.24   
Finance costs 22 9,440.25   7,709.61   
Depreciation and amortisation expense 23 13,231.79   11,523.86   
Total Expenses 77,975.21   68,937.27   

V Profit before tax (III-IV) 10,395.15   5,418.46   

VI Tax expense 24
(a) Current tax 4,727.50   2,072.76   
(b) Deferred tax (1,024.71)   (93.01)   

3,702.79   1,979.75   

VII Profit for the year (V - VI) 6,692.36   3,438.71   

VIII Other comprehensive income/(loss)
(A) Items that will not be subsequently reclassified to profit or loss
(i) Remeasurements of the defined employee benefit plans (10.06)   (7.64)   
(ii) Income tax relating to items that will not be subsequently reclassified to 
statement of profit and loss 3.48    2.64    
Other comprehensive (loss) for the year, net of tax (6.58)   (5.00)   

IX Total comprehensive income for the year, net of tax (VII + VIII) 6,685.78   3,433.71   

Earnings per share 

Basic/ Diluted (of ₹ 10 each) 26 66,923.60   34,387.10

Significant accounting policies 2
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements 1 to 38

As per our report of even date attached

For B S R & Co. LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants

Glenn D'souza Sumit Mukhija Bruno Lopez
Chief Executive Officer Director

Membership No: 112554 DIN : 07554875

Tri Pham Bimal Khandelwal
Director CFO
DIN : 06746192

MUMBAI MUMBAI
DATED: 18 Jun 2018 DATED: 18 Jun 2018

Partner

Note

STT Global Data Centres India Private Limited

Statement of Profit and Loss 

 For the year ended 

(formerly known as Tata Communications Data Centers Private Limited)
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Statement of Changes in Equity
for the year ended 31 March 2018

Currency in Indian Rupees

A Equity Share Capital
₹ in lakhs

No.of Shares Amount

Balance as at 1 April 2016 10,000   1.00  
Changes in equity share capital during
the year -  -   
Balance as at 31 March 2017 10,000  1.00  
Changes in equity share capital during
the year -  -   
Balance as at 31 March 2018 10,000  1.00  

B Other Equity
₹ in lakhs

 Other 
comprehensive 

Income 
 Debenture 
Redemption 

Reserve 

 General 
Reserve 

 Retained earnings 
 Reamursement 

of defined 
benefit plan 

Balance as at 1 April 2016 8,750.00     -  59.82   (4.84)   8,804.98   
Profit for the year   -  -   3,438.71    - 3,438.71 
Transfer to General Reserve on redemption of debentures (8,750.00)     -  -     -  (8,750.00)   
Transfer from debenture redemption reserve on redemption 
of debentures

- 8,750.00   -  -   
8,750.00   

Remeasurements of the defined benefit plans   -  -     -    (7.64) (7.64)   
Tax impact on above   -  -     -  2.64   2.64   
Balance as at 31 March 2017 -  8,750.00 3,498.53    (9.84)   12,238.69   
Profit for the year -  -   6,692.36  - 6,692.36 
Remeasurements of the defined benefit plans -  -   -   (10.06)  (10.06) 
Tax impact on above -  -   -   3.48   3.48  
Balance as at 31 March 2018 - 8,750.00 10,190.89  (16.42)  18,924.47   

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements 1 to 38

As per our report of even date attached

For B S R & Co. LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants

Glenn D'souza Sumit Mukhija Bruno Lopez
Partner Chief Executive Officer Director
Membership no. : 112554 DIN : 07554875

Tri Pham Bimal Khandelwal
Director CFO
DIN : 06746192

MUMBAI MUMBAI
DATED: 18 Jun 2018 DATED: 18 Jun 2018

Total Other Equity

Reserve & Surplus

Particulars

STT Global Data Centres India Private Limited
(formerly known as Tata Communications Data Centers Private Limited)
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for the year ended 31 March 2018

Currency in Indian Rupees

31 March 2018 31 March 2017
₹ in lakhs ₹ in lakhs

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Profit before tax 10,395.15                         5,418.46                      

Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation expense 13,231.79                         11,523.86                    
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment and intangibles (net) (32.32)                               (57.61)                          
Finance costs 9,440.25                           7,709.61                      
Gain on investments carried at fair value through profit or loss (net)                              (875.45) (385.95)                        
Allowance for doubtful trade receivables 474.01                              284.13                         
Interest on fixed deposits (6.56)                                 (41.33)                          
Operating profit before working capital changes 32,626.87                         24,451.17                    

Changes in working capital:
Adjustments for (increase) / decrease in operating assets:
Trade receivables (8,401.73)                          (1,160.44)                     
Other financial assets (1,505.24)                          (907.76)                        
Other assets 654.47                              (227.66)                        
Adjustments for increase / (decrease) in operating liabilities:
Trade payables 9,754.21                           5,339.69                      
Other financial liabilities (236.19)                             925.26                         
Provisions 71.78                                38.26                           
Other liabilities (2,419.79)                          3,941.75                      
Cash Generated from operations 30,544.38                         32,400.27                    
Income tax paid (net) (2,755.35)                          (4,554.93)                     
Net Cash flow generated from operating activities (A) 27,789.03                         27,845.34                    

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Payments for purchase of property, plant and equipment and intangibles (20,337.76)                        (21,811.93)                   
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment and intangibles 41.66                                143.27                         
Purchase of current investments (mutual funds) (75,830.00)                        (65,050.00)                   
Proceeds from sale of current investments (mutual funds) 69,711.75                         57,888.65                    
(Increase)/ Decrease in Earmarked funds 2,292.34                           (2,292.34)                     
Interest received on fixed deposits 6.56                                  41.33                           
Net Cash flow used in investing activities (B) (24,115.45)                        (31,081.02)                   

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from short term borrowings -                                    3,822.00                      
Proceeds from long term borrowings (net of arrangement fees) 85,188.00                         78,923.64                    
Repayment of long term borrowings (80,600.00)                        (35,000.00)                   
Repayment of short term borrowings -                                    (36,222.00)                   
Finance cost paid (7,993.90)                          (7,641.07)                     
Net Cash flow (used in)/ generated from financing activities (C) (3,405.90)                          3,882.57                      

Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents (A)+(B)+(C) 267.68                              646.89                         

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year 1,338.23                           691.34                         

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year (Refer note 10 Cash and cash equivalents) 1,605.91                           1,338.23                      

Note: Figures in brackets represent outflows.

As per our report of even date attached For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For B S R & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants

Glenn D'souza Sumit Mukhija Bruno Lopez
Partner Chief Executive Officer Director
Membership No: 112554 DIN : 07554875

Tri Pham Bimal Khandelwal
Director CFO
DIN : 06746192

MUMBAI MUMBAI
DATED: 18 Jun 2018 DATED: 18 Jun 2018

STT Global Data Centres India Private Limited
(formerly known as Tata Communications Data Centers Private Limited)

Particulars  Year Ended 

Cash Flow Statement

 Year Ended 
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STT Global Data Centres India Private Limited  
(formerly known as Tata Communications Data Centers Private Limited) 

Notes forming part of the financial statements  
for the year ended 31 March 2018 

Currency in Indian Rupees 

 

1. Corporate information  

STT Global Data Centres India Private Limited (formerly known as Tata Communications 

Data Centers Private Limited) (“the Company”) was incorporated in India on 13 December 

2007. The Company was originally incorporated with the name S & A Internet Services 

Private Limited which was changed to Tata Communications Data Centers Private Limited 

on 27 February 2014 and then to STT Global Data Centres India Private Limited on 11 April 

2017 (vide SRN G39621719). 

The Company is domiciled in India and its registered office is at Plot No. C21 & C36, ‘G’ 

Block, Bandra Kurla Complex Mumbai – 400098.Corporate identification number : 

U74999MH2007PTC176737 

2. Significant accounting policies 

a. Statement of compliance 

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting 

Standards (referrred to as “Ind AS”) as prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act 

2013, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as amended from time to 

time. 

b. Basis of preparation of financial statements 

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for certain 

financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value (refer 2(r) below). Historical cost is 

generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and 

services. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a 

liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. 

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (“₹”) and all values are rounded to 

the nearest lakh    (00,000), except when otherwise indicated. 

c. Current and non-current classification 

All assets and liabilities are classified into current and non-current. 

Assets 

An asset is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria: 

 it is expected to be realized in, or is intended for sale or consumption in the company’s 

normal operating cycle; 

 it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded; 

 it is expected to be realized within twelve months after the Balance sheet date; or  

 it is cash or a cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to 

settle a liability for at least twelve months after the Balance sheet date. 

Current assets include the current portion of non-current financial assets. 

All other assets are classified as non-current.  
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STT Global Data Centres India Private Limited  
(formerly known as Tata Communications Data Centers Private Limited) 

Notes forming part of the financial statements (Continued) 
for the year ended 31 March 2018 

Currency in Indian Rupees 

 

2. Significant accounting policies (Continued) 

c. Current and non-current classification (Continued) 

Liabilities 

A liability is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria: 

 it is expected to be settled in the company’s normal operating cycle; 

 it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded; 

 it is due to be settled within twelve months after the Balance sheet date; or 

 the company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for 

at least twelve months after the Balance sheet date. Terms of a liability that could, at the 

option of the counter party, result in its settlement by the issue of equity instruments do 

not affect its classification. 

Current liabilities include current portion of non-current financial liabilities. 

All other liabilities are classified as non-current. 

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s 

normal operating cycle and other criteria set out above which are in accordance with the 

revised Schedule III to the Act. 

Based on the nature of services and the time between the acquisition of assets for processing 

and their realization in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operating 

cycle as twelve months for the purpose of current – non-current classification of assets and 

liabilities. 

d. Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions 

The preparation of the Company's financial statements requires management to make 

judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, 

expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of 

contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in 

outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities 

affected in future periods. 

Judgements 

In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management has made the 

following judgements, which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in 

the financial statements: 

Fair value measurement of financial instruments 

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet 

cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured 

using valuation techniques including the DCF model. The inputs to these models are taken 

from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of 

judgement is required in establishing fair values. Judgements include considerations of 

inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these 

factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments.   
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STT Global Data Centres India Private Limited  
(formerly known as Tata Communications Data Centers Private Limited) 

Notes forming part of the financial statements (Continued) 
for the year ended 31 March 2018 

Currency in Indian Rupees 

 

2. Significant accounting policies (Continued) 

d. Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions (Continued) 

Fair value measurement of financial instruments (Continued) 

Further information about the assumptions made in measuring fair values is included in note 

28 – Financial instruments. 

Estimates and assumptions 

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty 

at the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the 

carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. 

The Company based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the 

standalone financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions 

about future developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances 

arising that are beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the 

assumptions when they occur. 

Defined benefit plans 

The cost of the defined benefit plan and other post-employment benefits and the present 

value of such obligations are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation 

involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. 

These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality 

rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined 

benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are 

reviewed at each reporting date. 

Useful life of Property Plant and equipment and Intangible assets 

The Company reviews the useful life of assets at the end of each reporting period. This 

reassessment may result in change in depreciation and amortization expense in future 

periods. 

Provisions and contingent liabilities  

A provision is recognised when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past 

events and it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation 

in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made.  

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past 

events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by occurrence or non-occurrence of 

one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company or a 

present obligation that arises from past events where it is either not probable that an outflow 

of resources will be required to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made. 

Contingent liabilities are disclosed in the notes. Contingent assets are not recognised in the 

financial statements. 

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current 

pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When 

discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as 

a finance cost. Provisions and contingent liabilities are reviewed at each balance sheet date. 
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STT Global Data Centres India Private Limited  
(formerly known as Tata Communications Data Centers Private Limited) 

Notes forming part of the financial statements (Continued) 
for the year ended 31 March 2018 

Currency in Indian Rupees 

 

2. Significant accounting policies (Continued) 

d. Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions (Continued) 

Income taxes 

Significant judgments are involved in determining the provision for income taxes, including 

the amount expected to be paid or recovered in connection with uncertain tax positions. 

Deferred tax: Deferred tax assets are recognized only to the extent it is considered probable 

that those assets will be recoverable. This involves an assessment of when those deferred tax 

assets are likely to reverse, and a judgement as to whether or not there will be sufficient 

taxable profits available to offset the tax assets when they do reverse. This requires 

assumptions regarding future profitability and is therefore inherently uncertain. To the extent 

assumptions regarding future profitability change, there can be an increase or decrease in 

the level of deferred tax assets recognized that can result in a charge or credit in the period 

in which the change occurs. 

e. Cash and cash equivalents  

Cash comprises cash on hand. Cash equivalents are short-term balances (with an original 

maturity of three months or less from the date of acquisition), highly liquid investments that 

are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to insignificant 

risk of changes in value. 

f. Property, plant and equipment  

i. Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost of acquisition or construction, less 

accumulated depreciation/ amortisation and impairment loss, if any. Cost includes 

inward freight, duties, taxes and all incidental expenses incurred for making the asset 

ready for its intended use.  

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable that the future economic 

benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the Company. 

ii. Capital work-in-progress includes cost of property, plant and equipment under 

installation/ under development as at the balance sheet date are carried at cost, 

comprising direct cost, directly attributable cost and attributable interest. 

The depreciable amount for property, plant and equipment is the cost of the property, plant 

and equipment or other amount substituted for cost, less its estimated residual value 

(wherever applicable). Depreciation on property, plant and equipment has been provided on 

the straight-line method as per the estimated useful lives. The asset’s residual values, 

estimated useful lives and methods of depreciation are reviewed at each financial year end 

and any change in estimate is accounted for on a prospective basis. 
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STT Global Data Centres India Private Limited  
(formerly known as Tata Communications Data Centers Private Limited) 

Notes forming part of the financial statements (Continued) 
for the year ended 31 March 2018 

Currency in Indian Rupees 

 

2. Significant accounting policies (Continued) 

f. Property, plant and equipment (Continued) 

Estimated useful lives of the assets are as follows: 

 Property, plant and equipment Estimated Useful lives of Assets 

i. Plant and machinery  

 - Network equipment and components (Refer 1 below) 3 to 8 years 

 - Electrical equipment and installations* 10 years 

 - General plant and machinery* 15 years 

ii 

 

Office equipment - Integrated building management 

systems (Refer 1 below) 

8 years 

iii. Leasehold improvements Asset life or lease period whichever is less 

iv. Building  

 - RCC structure* 60 years 

 - Temporary structures* 3 years 

v. Furniture and fixtures* 10 years 

vi. Office equipment* 5 years 

vii. Computers  

 - End user devices like laptops and desktop* 3 years 

 - Server and network* 6 years 

*   On the above categories of assets, the depreciation has been provided as per useful life 

prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013. 

1. In these cases, the lives of the assets are other than the prescribed lives in Schedule II 

to the Companies Act, 2013. The lives of the assets have been assessed based on 

technical advice, taking into account the nature of the asset, the estimated usage of the 

asset, the operating conditions of the asset, past history of replacement, anticipated 

technological changes, manufacturers warranties and maintenance support, etc 

2. Property, plant and equipment are derecognised from financial statement, either on 

disposal or when retired from active use. Losses arising in the case of retirement of 

property, plant and equipment and gains or losses arising from disposal of property, 

plant and equipment are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the year of 

occurrence. 

g. Intangible Assets 

Intangible assets are recognised when it is probable that the future economic benefits that 

are attributable to the assets will flow to the Company and the cost of the asset can be 

measured reliably.   

The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite 

useful life are reviewed at least at the end of each financial period. Changes in the expected 

useful life are considered to modify the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and 

are treated as changes in accounting estimates. 

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed 

for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. 

  

53. STT Global Data Centres India Pvt. Ltd. 605



STT Global Data Centres India Private Limited  
(formerly known as Tata Communications Data Centers Private Limited) 

Notes forming part of the financial statements (Continued) 
for the year ended 31 March 2018 

Currency in Indian Rupees 

 

2. Significant accounting policies (Continued) 

g. Intangible Assets (Continued) 

Estimated useful lives of intangible assets are as follows: 

Software and Application 3 to 6 years 

An intangible asset is de-recognised on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are 

expected from use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible 

asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying 

amount of the asset and are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is 

derecognised. 

h. Impairment of non- financial asset 

The carrying values of assets / cash generating units (“CGU”) at each balance sheet date are 

reviewed for impairment, if any indication of impairment exists. The following intangible 

assets are tested for impairment at the end of each financial year even if there is no indication 

that the asset is impaired:  

i. an intangible asset that is not yet available for use; and 

ii. an intangible asset with indefinite useful lives. 

If the carrying amount of the assets exceed the estimated recoverable amount, impairment is 

recognised for such excess amount. The impairment loss is recognised as an expense in the 

Statement of Profit and Loss, unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case 

any impairment loss of the revalued asset is treated as a revaluation decrease to the extent a 

revaluation reserve is available for that asset. 

The recoverable amount is the greater of the net selling price and the value in use. Value in 

use is arrived at by discounting the future cash flows to their present value based on an 

appropriate discount factor.  

When there is indication that an impairment loss recognised for an asset (other than a 

revalued asset) in earlier accounting periods no longer exists or may have decreased, such 

reversal of impairment loss is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss, to the extent 

the amount was previously charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss. In case of revalued 

assets such reversal is not recognised. 

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present 

value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value 

of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, 

recent market transactions are taken into account.  

The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations, 

which are prepared separately for the company as a CGU. These budgets and forecast 

calculations generally cover a significant period. For longer periods, a long-term growth rate 

is calculated and applied to project future cash flows after the significant period. 
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2. Significant accounting policies (Continued) 

i. Leases 

The determination of whether an arrangement is (or contains) a lease is based on the 

substance of the arrangement at the inception of the lease. The arrangement is, or contains, 

a lease if fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets 

and the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset or assets, even if that right is not 

explicitly specified in an arrangement. 

Colocation services include the use of certain assets that are dedicated to the customers over 

the period of the service. These assets meet lease criteria as the conditions pertaining to 

specific assets and the right to use the specific assets as specified in the standard is met. The 

Company classifies these leases as either finance lease or operating lease depending on the 

tenure and terms of the individual agreements.  

Lessee 

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss 

on a straight-line basis over the lease term since the payment to the lessor are structured in 

a manner that the increase is not expected to be in line with expected general inflation. 

Lessor 

Lease arrangements where the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset 

substantially vests with the lessor are classified as operating leases.  

Leases are classified as finance leases when substantially all of the risks and rewards 

incidental to ownership of an asset are transferred from the Company to the lessee. Amounts 

due from lessees under finance leases are recorded as receivables at the Company’s net 

investment in the leases. Finance lease income is allocated to accounting periods so as to 

reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the net investment outstanding in respect of the 

finance lease. 

Rental income and rental expenses on assets given or obtained under operating lease 

arrangements are recognised on a straight line basis over the term of the lease. The initial 

direct costs relating to operating leases are recorded as expenses as they are incurred. 

j. Employee benefits 

Employee benefits include contribution to provident fund, gratuity fund, compensated 

absences and performance incentives. 

i. Short term employment benefits 

The undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits expected to be paid in 

exchange for the services rendered by employees are recognised during the period 

when the employees render the service. These benefits include compensated absences 

such as paid annual leave and performance incentives payable within 12 months.  
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2. Significant accounting policies (Continued) 

j. Employee benefits (Continued) 

ii. Share based payment transactions 

The Company applies the IND AS 102 on “Share based Payments” issued by the 

Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’) to account for costs related to the 

Appreciation Unit Plan (AUP) units. The fair value of the amount payable to 

employees in respect of AUP, which are settled in cash, is recognised as an expense 

with a corresponding increase in liabilities, over the period during which the 

employees become unconditionally entitled to payment. The liability is remeasured at 

each reporting date and at settlement date based on the fair value of the AUPs. Any 

changes in the liability are recognised in statement of profit or loss. 

iii. Post-employment benefits 

Contributions to defined contribution retirement benefit schemes are recognised as 

expenses when employees have rendered services entitling them to the contributions.  

For defined benefit schemes, the cost of providing benefits is determined using the 

Projected Unit Credit Method, with actuarial valuations being carried out at each 

balance sheet date, which recognises each period of service as giving rise to additional 

unit of employee benefit entitlement and measure each unit separately to build up the 

final obligation. 

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset 

ceiling (if applicable), excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined 

benefit liability and the return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net 

interest on the net defined benefit liability), are recognised immediately in the balance 

sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through Other 

Comprehensive Income in the period in which they occur. Remeasurements are not 

reclassified to the Statement of Profit and Loss in subsequent periods. Past service cost 

is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period of plan amendment. 

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit 

liability or asset.  

The Company recognises changes in service costs comprising of current service costs, 

past-service costs, gains and losses on curtailments and non-routine settlements under 

employee benefit expenses in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The net interest 

expense or income is recognised as part of finance cost in the Statement of Profit and 

Loss.   

The retirement benefit obligation recognised in the balance sheet represents the 

present value of the defined benefit obligation as adjusted for unrecognised past 

service cost, and as reduced by the fair value of scheme assets. Any asset resulting 

from this calculation is limited to past service cost, plus the present value of available 

refunds and reductions in future contributions to the scheme. 
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2. Significant accounting policies (Continued) 

j. Employee benefits (Continued) 

iv. Other long-term employee benefits 

Compensated absences which are not expected to occur within twelve months after 

the end of the period in which the employee renders the related service are recognised 

as a liability at the present value of the defined benefit obligation as at the balance 

sheet date.  

k. Revenue recognition  

Income from operations consist of revenue from co-location and managed services. 

i. Revenues for colocation services are recognised over the period of the respective 

arrangements based on contracted fee schedules. 

ii. Revenues from long term contracts of co-location and managed service arrangements 

are recognised on a straight line basis over the period of the contracts.  

Amounts received in advance for any services are recorded as deferred revenue. 

l. Other Income 

Other income comprises of interest income for all financial instruments measured at 

amortised cost. Interest income is recorded on accrual basis. Interest income is included in 

Other income in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

m. Taxation 

Current Income tax 

i. Current tax expense is determined in accordance with the provisions of the Income 

Tax Act, 1961. 

ii. Provision for current income taxes and advance taxes paid in respect of the same 

jurisdiction are presented in the balance sheet after offsetting them on an assessment 

year basis. 

Deferred tax 

Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet approach on temporary differences at the 

reporting date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for 

financial reporting purposes at the reporting date. 

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced 

to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to 

allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are 

reassessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable 

that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.   
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2. Significant accounting policies (Continued) 

m. Taxation (Continued) 

Deferred tax (Continued) 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in 

the year when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) 

that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. 

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside the Statement of Profit and Loss (either in 

other comprehensive income or in equity) is recognised outside the Statement of Profit and 

Loss. Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in 

Other Comprehensive Income or directly in equity. 

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists 

to set off current tax assets against current income tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate 

to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority. 

n. Fair value measurement 

The Company measures financial instruments such as derivatives and certain investments, 

at fair value at each balance sheet date.  

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in 

an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value 

measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the 

liability takes place either:  

 In the principal market for the asset or liability or 

 In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or 

liability. 

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.  

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market 

participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants 

act in their economic best interest.  

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for 

which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant 

observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.  

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial 

statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the 

lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:  

 Level 1: Inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or 

liabilities. 

 Level 2: Inputs are other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable 

for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from 

prices). 
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2. Significant accounting policies (Continued) 

n. Fair value measurement (Continued) 

 Level 3: Inputs are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs). Fair 

values are determined in whole or in part using a valuation model based on 

assumptions that are neither supported by prices from observable current market 

transactions in the same instrument nor are they based on available market data. 

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the balance sheet on a recurring basis, the 

Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-

assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value 

measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period. 

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and 

liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the 

level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.  

o. Foreign currencies 

The Company’s financial statements are presented in ₹, which is also the Company’s 

functional currency.  

Foreign currency transactions are converted into ₹ at rates of exchange approximating those 

prevailing at the transaction dates or at the average exchange rate for the month in which the 

transaction occurs. Foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities are outstanding as at the 

balance sheet date are translated to ₹ at the closing rates prevailing on the balance sheet date. 

Exchange differences on settlement of and restatement of foreign currency transactions are 

recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

p. Borrowing costs 

Borrowing costs include interest, amortisation of any fee paid to the lender at the time of 

availing the borrowing. Costs in connection with the borrowing of funds to the extent not 

directly related to the acquisition of qualifying assets are charged to the Statement of Profit 

and Loss over the tenure of the loan. Borrowing costs, allocated to and utilised for qualifying 

assets, pertaining to the period from commencement of activities relating to construction / 

development of the qualifying asset up to the date of capitalisation of such asset are added 

to the cost of the assets. Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended and charged to the 

Statement of Profit and Loss during extended periods when active development activity on 

the qualifying assets is interrupted. 

q. Earnings per share  

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year 

attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares 

outstanding during the year.  

Diluted EPS is computed by dividing the net profit attributable to the equity shareholders 

for the year by the weighted average number of equity and dilutive equity equivalent shares 

outstanding during the year, except where the results would be anti-dilutive. 
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2. Significant accounting policies (Continued) 

r. Financial instruments 

Non – derivative financial instruments 

Financial assets and liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the 

contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial assets and liabilities are initially 

measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or 

issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial 

liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value 

measured on initial recognition of financial asset or financial liability. 

A. Financial assets 

i. Financial assets at amortised cost 

 Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost if these financial 

assets are held within a business whose objective is to hold these assets in 

order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the 

financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely 

payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 

ii. Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income 

Financial assets are measured at fair value through other comprehensive 

income if these financial assets are held within a business whose objective is 

achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows that give rise on specified 

dates to solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount 

outstanding and by selling financial assets. 

The Company has made an irrevocable election to present in other 

comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value of equity 

investments not held for trading. 

iii. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 

Financial assets are measured at fair value through profit or loss unless it is 

measured at amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive 

income on initial recognition. The transaction costs directly attributable to the 

acquisition of financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 

are immediately recognised in Statement of Profit or Loss. 

iv. Derecognition 

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a 

group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from 

the Company’s balance sheet) when: 

 The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or 

 The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the 

asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full 

without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ 

arrangement; and either (a) the Company has transferred substantially all 

the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither 

transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, 

but has transferred control of the asset 
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2. Significant accounting policies (Continued) 

r. Financial instruments (Continued) 

Non – derivative financial instruments (Continued) 

A. Financial assets (Continued) 

iv. Derecognition (Continued) 

The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that 

reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained. 

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred 

asset is measured at lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and 

maximum amount of consideration that the Company could be required to 

repay. 

v. Impairment of financial assets  

The Company assesses impairment based on expected credit losses (ECL) 

model to the following: 

 Financial assets measured at amortised cost; 

 Financial assets measured at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive 

Income; 

Expected credit losses are measured through a loss allowance at an amount 

equal to: 

 the 12-month expected credit losses (expected credit losses that result 

from those default events on the financial instrument that are possible 

within 12 months after the reporting date) 

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment 

loss allowance on: 

 Trade receivables 

Under the simplified approach, the Company does not track changes in credit 

risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECL 

at reporting date. 

The Company uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss 

allowance on the portfolio of trade receivables. The provision matrix is based 

on its historically observed default and is adjusted for forward looking 

estimates. At every reporting date, the historically observed rates are updated 

for changes, if any, in the forward-looking estimates. 

For assessing expected credit loss on a collective basis, financial assets have 

been grouped on the basis of shared risk characteristics and basis of estimation 

may change during the course of time due to change in risk characteristics. 
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2. Significant accounting policies (Continued) 

r. Financial instruments (Continued) 

Non – derivative financial instruments (Continued) 

B. Financial liabilities 

Financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. 

i. Subsequent measurement 

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as 

described below:  

I. Loans and borrowings 

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are 

subsequently measured at amortised cost on accrual basis. 

II. Derecognition 

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability 

is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability 

is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different 

terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such 

an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original 

liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the 

respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of Statement 

of Profit and Loss. 

ii. Offsetting of financial instruments 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported 

in the balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the 

recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise 

the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously. 

s. Recent accounting pronouncements 

Standards issued but not yet effective 

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") through Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) 

Amendment Rules, 2018 has notified the following new and amendments to Ind ASs which 

the Company has not applied as they are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 

April 1, 2018:  

Ind AS 115 Revenue from Contracts with Customers  

Ind AS 21 The effect of changes in Foreign Exchange rates  

Ind AS 115 – Revenue from Contracts with Customers  

Ind AS 115 establishes a single comprehensive model for entities to use in accounting for 

revenue arising from contracts with customers. Ind AS 115 will supersede the current 

revenue recognition standard Ind AS 18 Revenue, Ind AS 11 Construction Contracts when 

it becomes effective 
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2. Significant accounting policies (Continued) 

s. Recent accounting pronouncements (Continued) 

The core principle of Ind AS 115 is that an entity should recognise revenue to depict the 

transfer of promised goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the 

consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or 

services. Specifically, the standard introduces a 5-step approach to revenue recognition:  

Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer  

Step 2: Identify the performance obligation in contract  

Step 3: Determine the transaction price  

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract  

Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a performance obligation  

Under Ind AS 115, an entity recognises revenue when (or as) a performance obligation is 

satisfied, i.e. when ‘control’ of the goods or services underlying the particular performance 

obligation is transferred to the customer. The Company is currently in the process of 

evaluating impact of new standard and does not expect the impact of the adoption of the new 

standard to be material on its retained earnings and to its profit after tax on an ongoing basis. 

Ind AS 21 – The effect of changes in Foreign Exchange rates  

The amendment clarifies on the accounting of transactions that include the receipt or 

payment of advance consideration in a foreign currency. The appendix explains that the date 

of the transaction, for the purpose of determining the exchange rate, is the date of initial 

recognition of the non-monetary prepayment asset or deferred income liability. If there are 

multiple payments or receipts in advance, a date of transaction is established for each 

payment or receipt. Company is currently evaluating the impact of this amendment on its 

financial statements. 
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3. Property, plant and equipment   

                                                                                                                                                                                               (₹ in lakhs) 

 Leasehold 

Improvements 
Building Plant and 

Machinery 

Furniture and 

Fixtures 

Office 

Equipment 
Computers Total 

Cost         

Balance at 1 

April 2016 

3,686.73 1,812.57 91,791.46 3,700.64 11,685.34 78.88 112,755.62 

Additions 2,777.74 70.34 21,417.22 95.92 2,991.55 10.13 27,362.90 

Disposals/write-

offs 

- - (521.83) - - - (521.83) 

Transfers 73.87 - (83.96) (12.68) - - (22.77) 

Balance at 31 

March 2017 

6,538.34 1,882.91 112,602.89 3,783.88 14,676.89 89.01 139,573.92 

Additions 2,639.63 

 

25.34 9,527.37 64.56 1,927.09 11.60 14,195.59 

Disposals/write-

offs 

 

- 

 

- (335.87) (13.84) (1.13) (1.78) (352.62) 

Transfers 13.02 - (58.73) (28.40) 74.11 - - 

Balance at 31 

March 2018 

9,190.99 1,908.25 121,735.66 3,806.20 16,676.96 98.83 153,416.89 

Accumulated Depreciation 

Balance at  

1 April 2016 

401.41 30.82 46,651.92 1,763.03 5,285.62 67.81 54,200.61 

Depreciation for 

the year  

476.47 30.47 8,858.91 356.66 1,736.56 6.94 11,466.01 

On disposals/ 

write-off  

- - (461.28) - - - (461.28) 

On transfers 2.09 - (11.04) (0.97) - - (9.92) 

Balance at 31 

March 2017 

879.97 61.29 55,038.51 2,118.72 7,022.18 74.75 65,195.42 

Depreciation for 

the year 

754.29 34.35 10,463.64 372.35 1,555.72 9.15 13,189.50 

On disposals/ 

write-off 

- - (326.95) (13.42) (1.13) (1.78) (343.28) 

On transfers 8.64 - (45.88) (20.37) 57.61 - - 

Balance at 31 

March 2018 

1,642.90 95.64 65,129.32 2,457.28 8,634.38 82.12 78,041.64 

        

Carrying Amount        

Balance at 31 

March 2017 

5,658.37 1,821.62 57,564.38 1,665.16 7,654.71 14.26 74,378.50 

Balance at 31 

March 2018 

7,548.09 1,812.61 56,606.34 1,348.92 8,042.58 16.71 75,375.25 

a. Fixed assets are subject to first charge to secure the loans availed from bank (Refer Note 14). 
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4. Other intangible assets  

                                                                                                                                                                             (₹ in lakhs) 

 Computer 

Software 

Total 

 

Cost 

Balance at 1 April 2016 269.93 269.93 

Additions 39.06 39.06 

Disposals (96.85) (96.85) 

Transfers/write-offs 22.77 22.77 

Balance at 31 March 2017 234.91 234.91 

Additions 1.41 1.41 

Disposals - - 

Transfers/write-offs - - 

Balance at 31 March 2018 236.32 236.32 

   

Accumulated amortisation 

Balance at 1 April 2016 117.98 117.98 

Amortisation for the year 57.85 57.85 

On disposals (71.76) (71.76) 

On transfers 9.92 9.92 

Balance at 31 March 2017 113.99 113.99 

Amortisation for the year 42.29 42.29 

On disposals - - 

On transfers - - 

Balance at 31 March 2018 156.28 

 

156.28 

   

Carrying Amount 

Balance at 31 March 2017 120.92 120.92 

Balance at 31 March 2018 80.04 

 

80.04 

 

5. Other financial assets 

                                                                                                                                                                             (₹ in lakhs) 

  As at 

31 March 2018 

As at 

31 March 2017 

 Unsecured, considered good – at amortised cost   

 Non-Current   

a. Security deposits    

 - Payable to related parties (Refer Note 31) 562.90 - 

 - Others 41.99 108.82 

  604.89 108.82 
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6. Deferred tax assets (net) 

                                                     (₹ in lakhs)  

Major components of deferred tax asset and liability consist of the following: 

 As at 

1 April 

2017 

Recognised in 

Statement of 

Profit and 

Loss 

Recognised in 

Other 

Comprehensive 

Income 

As at 

31 March 2018 

Deferred tax assets arising out of 

timing differences on: 

    

Difference between accounting and tax 

depreciation / amortization 

1,104.80 404.49 - 1,509.29 

Provision for doubtful and other trade 

receivables 

394.75 169.47 - 564.22 

Provision for leave encashment 46.03 (3.87) - 42.16 

Provision for gratuity 57.59 30.30 3.48 91.36 

Provision for stamp duty 257.46 312.90 - 570.37 

Provision for AUP/RSUP - 74.88 - 74.88 

Interest received u/s 143(1) - 67.42 - 67.42 

Expenditure disallowed u/s. 40 (a) (ia) 127.84 21.8 - 149.65 

Others 4.07 0.04 - 4.11 

Total deferred tax assets (A) 1,992.54 1,077.44 3.48 3,073.46 

Deferred tax liability arising out of 

timing differences on: 

    

Fair valuation of investments 29.24 18.57 - 47.81 

Others 5.09 34.16 - 39.25 

Total deferred tax liabilities (B) 34.33 52.73 - 87.06 

Deferred tax assets (net) 1,958.21 1,024.71 3.48 2,986.40 

 

        (₹ in lakhs) 

Major components of deferred tax asset and liability consist of the following: 

 As at 

1 April   

2016 

Recognised in 

Statement of 

Profit and Loss 

Recognised in 

Other 

Comprehensive 

Income 

As at 

31 March 2017 

Deferred tax assets arising out of 

timing differences on: 

    

Difference between accounting and 

tax depreciation / amortization 

1,299.14 (194.34) - 1,104.80 

Provision for doubtful trade 

receivables 

296.42 98.33 - 394.75 

Provision for leave encashment 41.63 4.40 - 46.03 

Provision for gratuity 46.69 8.26 2.64 57.59 

Provision for stamp duty 102.44 155.02 - 257.46 

Expenditure disallowed u/s. 40 (a) (ia) 73.33 54.51 - 127.84 

Others 3.91 0.16 - 4.07 

Total deferred tax assets (A) 1,863.56 126.34 2.64 1,992.54 

Deferred tax liability arising out of 

timing differences on: 

    

Fair valuation of investments 1.00 28.24 - 29.24 

Others - 5.09 - 5.09 

Total deferred tax liabilities (B) 1.00 33.35 - 34.33 

Deferred tax assets (net) 1,862.56 93.01 2.64 1,958.21 
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7. Other Assets 

                                                                                                                                                                            (₹ in lakhs) 

  As at  

31 March 2018 

As at  

31 March 2017 

 Unsecured, considered good   

A Non-Current (Refer note 14) 

 

  

a. Capital advances  4,221.23 86.71 

b. Prepaid expenses  967.71 839.56 

c. 

 

Balance with Government authorities 115.26 - 

 Total (A) 5,304.20 926.27 

    

B 

 

Current (Refer note 14)   

a. Prepaid expenses 524.76 283.85 

b. Indirect taxes recoverable 253.25 1,459.48 

c. Advance to contractors and vendors 234.00 181.26 

d. Others 19.74 5.06 

 Total (B) 1,031.75 1,929.65 

     

 Total (A) + (B) 6,335.95 2,855.92 

8. Investments  

                                                                                                                                                                           (₹ in lakhs) 

  As at  

31 March 2018 

As at  

31 March 2017 

 Current (Refer note 14)   

 Investments at fair value through profit or loss -Quoted 

Mutual Funds  
17,693.89 10,700.18 

 Total 17,693.89 10,700.18 

9. Trade receivables - Unsecured 

                                                                                                                                                                            (₹ in lakhs) 

  As at  

31 March 2018 

As at  

31 March 2017 

     

 Considered good 17,267.28 9,339.56 

 Doubtful  1,614.64 1,140.63 

  18,881.92 10,480.19 

 

 

Less: Allowance for doubtful debts (expected credit loss 

allowance (Refer note 29 (d)) 
(1,614.64) (1,140.63) 

 Total 17,267.28 9,339.56 

i. For receivables secured against borrowings refer Note 14 

ii. For receivables from related parties refer Note 31 
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10. Cash and cash equivalents 

                                                                                                                                                                            (₹ in lakhs) 

  As at  

31 March 2018 

As at  

31 March 2017 

    

a. Balances with banks (Refer Note 14) 1,605.91 1,338.23 

 Cash and cash equivalent as per Statement of cash flows 1,605.91 1,338.23 

11. Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents as above 

                                                                                                                                                                            (₹ in lakhs) 

  As at  

31 March 2018 

As at  

31 March 2017 

a. Restricted bank balance (Refer i below) - 2,292.34 

 Total - 2,292.34 

i. Nil (2017: ₹ 2,292.34 lakhs held towards interest and principal payments equivalent 

to 3 months as at the balance sheet date in accordance to the provisions of the bank 

term loan facility availed by the Company).  

12. Equity Share Capital 

                                                                                                                                                                            (₹ in lakhs) 

  As at 

31 March 2018 

As at 

31 March 2017 

a. Authorised:    

 15,00,00,000 (2017: 50,000) Equity shares of  ₹10 each  15,000.00 5.00 

b. Issued, Subscribed and Paid up:   

 10,000 (2017: 10,000) Equity shares of ₹10 each fully paid 

up (Refer i below) 

1.00 1.00 

i. Reconciliation of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the 

reporting year: 

Equity shares As at 31 March 2018 As at 31 March 2017 

 No of shares  ₹ in lakhs No of shares ₹ in lakhs 

Opening Balance 10,000 1.00 10,000 1.00 

Add: Issued during the year - - - - 

Closing Balance 10,000 1.00 10,000 1.00 

ii. Terms/ rights attached to equity shares: 

The Company has only one class of equity shares with a face value of  ₹10 per share. 

Each shareholder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share at any general 

meeting of shareholders. The Company declares and pays dividend in Indian Rupees. 

The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the 

shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting. In the event of liquidation, the 

equity shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the Company, after 

distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion to their shareholding. 
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12. Equity Share Capital (Continued) 

iii. Shares held by holding company: 

     As at 31 March 2018         As at 31 March 2017 

 No of 

shares 

₹ in lakhs No of 

shares 

₹ in lakhs 

STT India DC Pte. Ltd. 

(Holding Company w.e.f. 19 October 2016) 

7,400 0.74 7,400 0.74 

Tata Communications Limited  

(Holding Company upto 18 October 2016) 

2,600 0.26 2,600 0.26 

iv. Number of shares held by each shareholder holding more than 5% of the issued 

share capital: 

 As at 31 March 2018 As at 31 March 2017 

 
No of 

shares Percentage 

No of 

shares Percentage 

STT India DC Pte. Ltd. 

(Holding Company w.e.f. 19 October 2016) 7,400 74% 7,400 74% 

Tata Communications Limited  

(Holding Company upto 18 October 2016) 2,600 26% 2,600 26% 

13. Other Equity 

(₹ in lakhs) 

  As at  

  31 March 2018 

As at  

31 March 2017 

    

a. General reserve (Refer i below)   8,750.00  8,750.00 

    

b. Retained earnings 10,190.89 3,498.53 

    

c. Other comprehensive income (16.42) (9.84) 

    

 Total 18,924.47 12,238.69 

i. General reserve: The general reserve is used from time to time to transfer profit from 

retained earnings for appropriation purposes. As the general reserve is created by a 

transfer from one component of equity to another and is not an item of other 

comprehensive income, items included in the general reserve will not be reclassified 

subsequently to Statement of Profit and Loss. 

14 Borrowings 

  (₹ in lakhs) 

  As at  

31 March 2018 

As at  

31 March 2017 

 Non – current financial liabilities   

 Secured    

 Rupee loan from Banks (net) (refer i below) 78,740.00 80,600.00 

 Less: Arrangement fees (402.52) (1,676.36) 

 Total (A) 78,337.48 78,923.64 
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14 Borrowings (Continued) 

i. Secured bank loan 

During the year, Company has availed a loan facility of ₹ 86,800 lakhs from 

consortium of banks and the previous loan of ₹ 80,600 lakhs has been repaid. 

The loan has been secured in favour of the Security Trustee acting for the benefit of 

the Secured Parties by way of first pari passu charge by way of hypothecation of (the 

“Security”): (a) all the movable properties and assets (other than Insurance Contracts) 

of the Borrower (present and future), including, but not limited to, moveable plant and 

machinery, machinery spares, tools and accessories, furniture, fixtures, both present 

and future; (b) all the Borrower’s accounts (present and future), including in each case, 

all monies lying credited/deposited into such accounts; (c) all the Borrower’s current 

assets, book debts operating cash flows, commissions, receivables, revenues of 

whatsoever nature and wherever arising, all investments and other securities (present 

and future). 

The carrying amounts of assets pledged as security for borrowings are as follows: 

                                                                                                                                            (₹ in lakhs) 

Particulars As at 31 March 2018 

Non current assets  

Property, Plant and equipment 75,375.25 

Capital work in progress 1,653.92 

Other intangible assets 80.04 

Other financial assets 604.89 

Other tax assets ( Net)\ 3,603.56 

Other non-current assets 5,304.20 

Investments 17,693.89 

Trade receivables 17,267.28 

Cash and cash equivalents 1,605.91 

Unbilled receivables 6,038.28 

Other current assets 1,031.75 

In the previous year, the loan was secured by a first ranking exclusive charge in favour 

of the Security Trustee (for the benefit of the Finance Parties) by the Borrower over: 

(a) All movable fixed assets of Borrower, including but not limited to: (i) cooling 

infrastructure, wiring, equipments, racks, computers, other electrical and electronical 

devices, power equipments, in each case located in the Data Center Facilities; and (ii) 

and other movable fixed assets used in the Business (“Movable Fixed Assets”); (b) the 

Account Assets; (c) the receivables; and (d) the Insurance Assets. 
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14 Borrowings (Continued) 

i. Secured bank loan (Continued) 

The repayment schedule of loan from bank is stated below: 

                                       (₹ in lakhs) 

Date of Repayment Amount of Repayment 

FY 2018-19 6,448 

FY 2019-20 6,448 

FY 2020-21 7,068 

FY 2021-22 7,068 

FY 2022-23 7,068 

FY 2023-24 7,068 

FY 2024-25 7,192 

FY 2025-26 7,192 

FY 2026-27 8,804 

FY 2027-28 10,416 

FY 2028-29 10,416 

  85,188 

 

 (₹ in lakhs) 

 Interest Rate Year 

of maturity 

Carrying amount 

as at 31 March 

2018 

Secured Bank Loan  MCLR + 0.25% 2029 55,614.07 

Secured Bank Loan MCLR + 0.45% 2029 29,131.18 

Total   84,745.25 

Details of Covenant restrictions on bank loan 

There is no financial covenant in the current loan facility.  

In the previous year as on 30 September 2016, there was a breach in the debt service 

coverage ratio covenant. However, the Company obtained a waiver from the agent as regards 

this breach. Subsequent to 31 March 2017, the Non-current borrowing of ₹ 80,600 lakhs was 

refinanced. On the basis of the new covenant and its forecasts, management believes that the 

risk of the new covenant being breached is low.  
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15. Other financial liabilities  

                                                                                                                                                                             (₹ in lakhs) 

  As at  

31 March 2018 

As at  

31 March 2017 

A Non-current   

a. Accrued payroll - 26.34 

b. Cash settled incentive ( Refer Note 25(iii))  39.70 - 

 Total (A) 39.70 26.34 

    

B Current   

a. Current maturity of long term borrowings (Refer 

Note 14) 
  

     Loan from Banks 6,448.00 - 

     Less: Arrangement fees (40.23) - 

     Total 6,407.77 - 

b. Payable for capital goods   

 - Payable to related parties (Refer Note 31) - 6.73 

 - Others  3,704.23 6,646.70 

c. Interest accrued on loan 212.74 - 

d. Accrued payroll 844.10 1,149.19 

e. Cash settled incentive ( Refer Note 25(iii)) 58.71 - 

f. Other payables 6.41 9.58 

 Total  11,233.96 7,812.20 

16. Provisions 

                                                                                                                                                                          (₹  in lakhs) 

               As at  

31 March 2018 

As at  

31 March 2017 

A Non-current   

 Provision for employee benefits (Refer note 25)   

 - Provision for compensated absences  108.20 130.53 

 - Provision for gratuity 209.08 145.41 

 Total (A) 317.28 275.94 

B Current   

 Provisions for employee benefits (Refer note 25)     

 - Provision for compensated absences 20.89 11.78 

 - Provision for gratuity 44.75 13.37 

 Total (B) 65.64 25.15 

    

 Total (A) + (B) 382.92 301.09 
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17 Other liabilities 

                                                                                                                                                                              (₹ in lakhs) 

               As at  

31 March 2018 

As at  

31 March 2017 

A Non-current   

a. Deferred revenue 2,826.23 3,278.88 

b. Others   

 - Lease equalisation liability (Refer Note 31) 245.79 559.68 

 - Others - 6.74 

 Total (A) 3,072.02 3,845.30 

B Current   

a. Deferred revenue   

 - Payable to related parties (Refer Note 31) 44.55 44.55 

 - Others 1,661.99 3,322.25 

b. Statutory dues * 70.57 404.40 

c. Others   

 - Lease equalisation liability (Refer Note 31) 337.84 144.56 

 - Others 417.89 263.63 

 Total (B) 2,532.84 4,179.39 

    

 Total (A) + (B) 5,604.86 8,024.69 

    

 *Statutory dues include    

 i. TDS payable 70.40 404.29 

 ii. Professional Tax 

 

0.17 0.11 

18. Trade payables 

                                                                                                                                                                            (₹ in lakhs) 

  As at  

31 March 2018 

As at  

31 March 2017 

    

 Current   

 Total outstanding dues of creditors   

a. Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and 

small enterprises (Refer note 34)                                                        

(a) 

 

50.86 

 

66.97 

b. Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro 

enterprises and small enterprises 
5,617.12 3,264.29 

c. Payable to related parties (Refer note 31) 13,053.00 5,635.52 

 (b) 18,670.12 8,899.81 

    

 Total (a + b) 18,720.98 8,966.78 
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19 Other income 

                                                                                                                                                                           (₹ in lakhs) 

  For the year ended  

31 March 2018 

For the year ended  

31 March 2017 

a. Interest Income    

 - Bank deposits (at amortised cost)  6.56 41.33 

b. Interest on income tax refund 333.60 65.58 

c. Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment 

and intangibles (net) 
32.32 57.61 

d. Gain on investments carried at fair value through 

profit or loss (net) 
875.45 385.95 

e. Other non-operating income (net)   

 - Foreign exchange gain (net) 15.24 2.30 

 - Miscellaneous income 274.35 37.16 

 Total 1,537.52 589.93 

20. Operating and other expenses 

                                                                                                                                                                          (₹ in lakhs) 

   For the year ended For the year ended 

 
 

 31 March, 2018   31 March, 2017  

a. Power and fuel  27,125.00 23,604.70 

b. Repairs and maintenance:   

 Buildings 440.33 44.94 

 Plant and machinery 3,782.60 2,804.07 

 Others 438.20 11.67 

c. Allowance for doubtful trade receivables 474.01 284.13 

d. Network and cable charges 524.70 535.30 

e. Rent   11,304.16 9,698.78 

f. Rates and taxes  1,698.90 889.53 

g. Travelling  203.10 84.73 

h. Outsource Services 1,779.66 2,184.60 

i. Legal and professional charges 822.69 427.20 

j. Commissions 600.00 6,052.88 

k. Insurance   299.01 181.90 

l. Security charges 1,338.83 - 

m. Water charges 368.38 0.16 

n. Director’s Remuneration 231.76 4.62 

o. Corporate social responsibility expenditure (Refer i) 80.27 71.01 

p. Other expenses (Refer ii) 408.16 245.34 

 Total 51,919.76 47,125.56 

i. As required by the Companies Act, 2013 and rules thereon, gross amount required 

to be spent by the Company  during the year toward Corporate Social Responsibility 

(CSR) amount to ₹ 80.19 (2017: ₹ 70.93 lakhs). The Company has spent ₹ 80.27 

lakhs (2017: ₹ 71.01 lakhs) during the year on CSR activities mainly for skill 

development training. 
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20. Operating and other expenses (Continued) 

ii. Other expenses include auditors’ remuneration as follows (excluding taxes): 

                                                                                                                                                                               (₹ in lakhs) 

 For the year ended  

31 March 2018 

For the year ended  

31 March 2017 

Auditors’ remuneration and expenses    

Audit fees 17.00 15.00 

Tax audit fees 3.00 3.50 

Other professional services 12.00 7.91 

For reimbursement of expenses 4.16 0.08 

21. Employee benefits expense 

(₹ in lakhs) 

  For the year ended  

31 March 2018 

For the year ended  

31 March 2017 

a. Salaries, bonus and related costs 2,942.21 2,445.41 

b. Contribution to provident funds (Refer note 25) 95.61 55.22 

c. Gratuity expense (Refer note 25) 79.27 12.27 

d. Compensated absences 42.23 18.00 

e. Share based payments   

 - Cash settled incentive (Refer note 25) 98.41 - 

f. Staff welfare expenses  125.68 47.34 

 Total 3,383.41 2,578.24 

22. Finance costs 

(₹ in lakhs) 

  

 

For the year ended 

31 March 2018 

For the year ended 

31 March 2017 

 Interest costs:   

a. On loan from banks measured at amortised cost 9,175.05 3,895.07 

b. On loan from Tata Communications Limited measured 

at amortised cost 
- 3,696.72 

c. Interest on tax 246.03 97.52 

d. Others 19.17 20.30 

 Total 9,440.25 7,709.61 

23. Depreciation and amortisation expense 

(₹ in lakhs) 

 For the year ended  

31 March 2018 

For the year ended  

31 March 2017 

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment assets (Refer 

note 3) 
13,189.50 11,466.01 

Amortisation of intangible assets (Refer note 4) 42.29 57.85 

Total 13,231.79 11,523.86 
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24. Tax expense 

i. Income tax recognised in Statement of Profit and loss: 

                                                                                                                                                                            (₹ in lakhs)  

Particulars For the year ended 

31 March 2018 

For the year ended 

31 March 2017 

Current tax   

In respect of current year 4,740.43 2,353.71 

In respect of prior years (12.93) (280.95) 

Total Current tax (a) 4,727.50 2,072.76 

Deferred tax   

In respect of the current year (1,037.94) (374.82) 

In respect of the earlier years 13.23 281.81 

Total deferred tax (b) (1,024.71) (93.01) 

Total Income tax expense (a+b) 3,702.79 1,979.75 

ii. The reconciliation between the provision of income tax of the Company and amounts 

computed by applying the Indian statutory income tax rate to profit before taxes is as 

follows : 

                                                                                                                                                                            (₹ in lakhs) 

Particulars For the year ended 

31 March 2018 

For the year ended 

31 March 2017 

Profit before tax  10,395.15 5,418.46 

Income tax expense calculated at 34.608% Tax rate 

(2017: 34.608% Tax rate) 
 

3,597.55 

 

1,875.22 

Reasoning   

Effect of adjustments that are not deductible in 

determining taxable profit 
 

133.76 

 

103.67 

Difference in tax rate (28.84) - 

True up impact of prior years 0.32 0.86 

Total 105.24 104.53 

   

Income tax expense recognised in Statement of Profit 

and Loss 
 

3,702.79 

 

1,979.75 

iii. Income tax recognised in other comprehensive income  

                                                                                                                                                                           (₹ in lakhs)  

Particulars For the year ended 

31 March 2018 

For the year ended 

31 March 2017 

Deferred tax   

Re-measurements of the defined benefit obligation 3.48 2.64 

Total Income tax  3.48 2.64 

Bifurcation of income taxes recognized in Other 

Comprehensive Income into: 
  

Items that will be reclassified to profit and loss - - 

Items that will not be reclassified to profit and loss 3.48 2.64 
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25. Employee Benefits 

i. Defined Contribution Plan - Provident Fund: 

The Company makes contribution towards provident fund under a defined 

contribution retirement benefit plan for qualifying employees. The provident fund is 

administered by the Regional Provident Fund Commissioner. Under this scheme, the 

Company is required to contribute a specified percentage of payroll cost to fund the 

benefits.  

Provident fund contributions amounting to ₹ 95.61 lakhs (2017: ₹ 55.22 lakhs) have 

been charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss, under Contribution to provident, 

gratuity and other funds in note 21 “Employee benefits expense”. 

ii. Defined benefit obligation – Gratuity 

The plan provides for lump sum payments to vested employees at retirement, death 

while in employment or on termination of employment of an amount equivalent to 15 

days salary for each completed year of service or part thereof in excess of six months. 

Vesting occurs upon completion of five years of service. The cost of providing 

benefits for defined benefit schemes is determined using the Projected Unit Credit 

method, with actuarial valuations being carried out at each Balance Sheet date. 

These plans typically expose the Company to actuarial risk such as interest rate risk 

and salary risk: 

Interest rate risk The defined benefit obligation calculated uses a discount rate based on 

government bonds. If bond yields fall, the defined benefit obligation will tend 

to increase 

 

Salary risk Higher than expected increases in salary will increase the defined benefit 

obligation 

Demographic risk This is the risk of variability of results due to unsystematic nature of 

decrements that include mortality, withdrawal, disability and retirement.  The 

effect of these decrements on the defined benefit obligation is not straight 

forward and depends upon the combination of salary increase, discount rate 

and vesting criteria.  It is important not to overstate withdrawals because in 

the financial analysis the retirement benefit of a short career employee 

typically costs less per year as compared to a long service employee 

Regulatory risk Gratuity benefit is paid in accordance with the requirements of the Payment 

of Gratuity Act,1972 (as amended from time to time). There is a risk of 

change in regulations requiring higher gratuity payouts. 

No other post-retirement benefits are provided to the employees. 

The most recent actuarial valuation of the plan assets and the present value of the 

defined benefit obligation were carried out as at 31 March 2018 by an independent 

actuary.  
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25. Employee Benefits (Continued) 

ii. Defined benefit obligation – Gratuity (Continued) 

The principal assumptions used for the purposes of the actuarial valuations were as 

follows: 

  As at 

31 March 2018 

As at  

31 March 2017 

 Principal Actuarial assumptions   

 Discount rate     7.50% 7.20% 

 Salary Escalation Rate 10% 10% 

 Withdrawal rate   

 Less than 5 years 15%       15% 

 5 years and more 8%         8% 

The discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields of Government of India 

securities as at the Balance Sheet date for the estimated term of the obligations. 

The estimates of future compensation cost considered in the actuarial valuation take 

account of inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors. 

Amounts recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in respect of these defined 

benefit plans are as follows: 

                                                                                                                                                                               (₹ in lakhs)  

  Year ended March 

  2018 2017 

I Expenses recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss   

 Current service cost 14.88 12.27 

 Past service cost – plan amendments 64.39 - 

 Interest cost 11.02 10.17 

 Components of defined benefit cost recognised in the 

Statement of Profit and Loss (Refer note 21 and 22) 

 

90.29 

 

22.44 

    

  Year ended March  

II Expenses recognised in the Other Comprehensive Income 2018 2017 

 Actuarial changes arising from changes in Financial 

assumptions 

 

(5.37) 

 

7.51 

 Actuarial changes arising from experience adjustments 15.43 0.13 

 Components of defined benefit cost recognised in Other 

Comprehensive Income 

 

10.06 

 

7.64 
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25. Employee Benefits (Continued) 

ii. Defined benefit obligation – Gratuity (Continued) 

The details in respect of the unfunded amounts recognised in the balance sheet for 

these defined benefit schemes are as under: 

                                                                                                                                                                               (₹ in lakhs)  

Particulars 

Gratuity (Unfunded) 

As at 31 March As at 31 March 

  2018   2017 

III Amount recognised in the balance sheet   

 Obligation at the end of the year 253.83 158.78 

 Net liability arising from defined benefit obligation  253.83 158.78 

 Non-current provision (Refer note 16A) 209.08 145.41 

 Current provision (Refer note 16B) 44.75 13.37 

    

IV Change in the defined benefit obligation   

 Opening defined benefit obligation  158.78 134.90 

 Current service cost 14.88 12.27 

 Interest cost 11.02 10.17 

 Past service cost – plan amendments 64.39 - 

 Liability transferred to other companies 6.20 6.10 

 Actuarial (gain) / loss on obligations- experience 15.43 0.13 

 Actuarial (gain) / loss on obligations– financial 

assumptions 
(5.37) 7.51 

 Benefits paid (11.50) (12.30) 

 Closing defined benefit obligation 253.83 158.78 

    

 
V A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumption as at 31 March 2018 and 31 March 

2017 is as shown below: (As per actuarial valuation report) 

 The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the 

respective assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period, while holding all other 

assumptions constant. 

  As at  

31 March 2018 

As at  

31 March 2017 

 Discount rate   

 Increase (1%) (16.53) (10.54) 

 Decrease (1%) 18.77 11.97 

    

 Salary escalation rate   

 Increase (1%) 10.69 5.67 

 Decrease (1%) (10.75) (5.85) 

    

 Withdrawal Rate   

 Increase (5%) 0.19 2.95 

 Decrease (5%) (2.88) (6.90) 
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25. Employee Benefits (Continued) 

ii. Defined benefit obligation – Gratuity (Continued) 

 

 The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the 

defined benefit obligation as it is unlikely that the change in assumptions would occur in isolation 

of one another as some of the assumptions may be correlated. 

  

 Furthermore, in presenting the above sensitivity analysis, the present value of the defined benefit 

obligation has been calculated using the projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting 

period, which is the same as that applied in calculating the defined benefit obligation liability 

recognized in the balance sheet. There was no change in the methods and assumptions used in 

preparing the sensitivity analysis from prior years. 

    

 
                                    (₹ in lakhs)    

VI Maturity profile of defined benefit plan  As at  

31 March 2018 

 

 March 31, 2019  46.40  

 March 31, 2020  21.98  

 March 31, 2021  22.43  

 March 31, 2022  27.33  

 March 31, 2023  29.60  

 March 31, 2024 to March 31, 2028  193.45  

 Total expected payments  341.19  

     

II Leave plan and compensated absences 

   Leave unavailed of by eligible employees may be carried forward / encashed by them / their 

nominees in the event of death or permanent disablement or resignation, subject to a maximum 

leave of 60 days in addition to accumulated leave balance available in accumulated quota. 

  

 The liability for compensated absences as at the year end is ₹ 129.09 lakhs (2017: ₹ 142.31 lakhs) 

as shown under non-current provisions ₹ 108.20 (2017: ₹ 130.53 lakhs) and current provisions ₹ 

20.89 lakhs (2017:  ₹ 11.78 lakhs). The amount charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss is ₹ 

50.08 lakhs (2017: ₹ 26.91 lakhs) 

iii. Share based payments 

a. Description of cash settled payment arrangement 

During the year, the Board of Directors of the Company approved a Long Term 

Incentives Scheme to its high performing employees in the form of Cash-settled 

Appreciation Unit Plan (AUP), whereby the eligible employees will be granted 

certain AUP units. 

The AUP Units granted were equally divided into four tranches and each tranche 

can be encashed over a seven year period subject to the terms of the encashment 

conditions of the scheme.  

On the ‘event of Exercise' subject to the express provisions of the scheme, each 

eligible employee shall, subject to deduction of taxes at appropriate rates, be paid 

an amount equivalent to the difference between the Fair Value determined as of 

the relevant valuation date prior to encashment and the Intial Value, subject to a 

minimum of NIL.  
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25. Employee Benefits (Continued) 

iii. Share based payments (Continued) 

a. Description of cash settled payment arrangement (Continued) 

The final value of an AUP shall be the Initial Value adjusted with the cumulative 

Total Shareholder's Return (TSR) % after taking into account the dividends paid 

and adjustments of net new equity, if any. Being an unlisted company, the TSR 

calculation has been done on the basis of Net Operating Profit After Tax (NOPAT) 

Improvement Valuation Model. 

b. Measurement of fair values 

The key assumptions used to estimate the fair value 

of options using Black - Scholes pricing model: 

For the year ended 31 March 2018 

Initial Value at Grant date ₹ 100 for each grant 

Exercise price Initial Value adjusted with the 

cumulative TSR% taking into account 

dividends paid and adjusted for any net 

new equity 

Vesting period - Options shall vest in four tranches 1st Tranche: 1 April 2018  

2nd Tranche: 1 April 2019  

3rd Tranche: 1 April 2020  

4th Tranche: 1 April 2021 

Expected time to exercise option (Range) (15 days encashment window of 1st to 

15th September annually) 

Expected Volatility 24.51% 

Expected Dividend NIL 

Risk- free rate over vesting period(Range) 7.51% 

Fair Value of each AUP as on grant date 44.00 

Fair Value of each AUP as on 31 Mar 2018 54.47 

c. Reconciliation of outstanding AUP Units 

 For the year ended  31 March 2018 

 Number of 

options 

Weighted average 

exercise price (₹) 

Outstanding at beginning of the year - - 

Granted during the year 431,100 113.78 

Forfeited during the year 9,100 113.78 

Exercised  during the year - - 

Outstanding at the end of the year   422,000 113.78 

d. Expense recognised in statement of profit and loss 

For details on the employee benefits expense refer note 21 
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26. Earnings per share 

(₹ in lakhs)  

  As at  

31 March 2018 

As at  

31 March 2017 

   

Net profit after tax attributable to the equity shareholders (A) 6,692.36 3,438.71 

Number of equity shares outstanding at the end of the year 10,000 10,000 

Weighted average number of shares outstanding during the 

 year (B) 10,000 10,000 

 

Basic and diluted earnings per share (` per equity share of  

` 10 each) (A/B) 66,923.60 34,387.17 

27. Segment reporting 

The Board of directors of the Company has been identified as the Chief Operating Decision 

Maker (CODM) as defined by Ind AS 108, Operating Segments. The Company is engaged 

in providing data center colocation services, manage hosting and infrastructure services. 

Considering the nature of the Company's business and operations, there are no other 

reportable segments (business and/or geographical) and is also considered by CODM as the 

only reportable business segment taking into account the nature of the business, the 

organization structure, internal reporting structure and risk and rewards. 

Information about major customers: - 

(₹ in lakhs)  

Name For the Year Ended  

31 March, 2018 

Customer A 24,364.55 

Customer C 8,139.40 

Customer B 8,042.48 

 
(₹ in lakhs) 

Name For the Year Ended  

31 March, 2017 

Customer A 14,125.79 

Customer C 7,123.74 

Customer B 4,373.34 

28. Financial Instruments 

The significant accounting policies, including the criteria for recognition, the basis of 

measurement and the basis on which income and expense are recognised, in respect of each 

class of financial asset, financial liability and equity instrument are disclosed in note 2(r) to 

the financial statements. 
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28. Financial Instruments: (Continued) 

 Financial assets and liabilities 

 The carrying value of financial instruments by categories as at 31 March 2018 is as follows: 

                                                                                                                                               (₹ in lakhs)  

 Fair value 

through Profit 

or loss 

Fair value 

through Other 

Comprehensive 

Income 

Amortised 

cost 

Total 

Carrying 

value 

Financial Assets:     

Investments  17,693.89 - - 17,693.89 
     

Other financial assets - - 604.89 604.89 
     

Trade receivables - - 17,267.28 17,267.28 
     

Cash and cash equivalents - - 1,605.91 1,605.91 

Unbilled receivables - - 6,038.28 6,038.28 
     

Total 17,693.89 - 25,516.36 43,210.25 
     

Financials Liabilities:     

Borrowings - - 84,745.25 84,745.25 
     

Other financial liabilities - - 4,865.89 4,865.89 
     

Trade payables - - 18,720.98 18,720.98 
     

Total - - 108,332.12 108,332.12 

The carrying value of financial instruments by categories as at 31 March 2017 is as follows: 

                                                                                                                                              (₹ in lakhs)  

 Fair value 

through Profit 

or loss 

Fair value 

through Other 

Comprehensive 

Income 

Amortised 

cost 

Total 

Carrying 

value 

Financial Assets:     

Investments  10,700.18 - - 10,700.18 
     

Other financial assets - - 108.82 108.82 
     

Trade receivables - - 9,339.56 9,339.56 
     

Cash and cash equivalents - - 1,338.23 1,338.23 
     

Unbilled receivables - - 5,029.11 5,029.11 

Other bank balances - - 2,292.34 2,292.34 
     

Total 10,700.18 - 18,108.06 28,808.24 
     

Financials Liabilities:     

Borrowings - - 78,923.64 78,923.64 
     

Other financial liabilities - - 7,812.20 7,812.20 
     

Trade payables - - 8,966.78 8,966.78 
     

Total - - 95,702.62 95,702.62 
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28. Financial Instruments: (Continued) 

Carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables and trade payables as at 

31 March 2018 and 31 March 2017 approximate the fair value because of their short term 

nature. Difference between carrying amounts and fair values of other financial assets, other 

financial liabilities and borrowings subsequently measured at amortised cost is not 

significant in each of the years presented. 

Fair value hierarchy: 

The fair value hierarchy is based on inputs to valuation techniques that are used to measure 

fair value that are either observable or unobservable and consist of following three levels: 

Level 1: Inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or 

liabilities. 

Level 2: Inputs are other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for 

the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices). 

Level 3: Inputs are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs). Fair values 

are determined in whole or in part using a valuation model based on assumptions that are 

neither supported by prices from observable current market transactions in the same 

instrument nor are they based on available market data. 

The following table summarises financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value 

on a recurring basis and financial assets that are not measured at fair value on a 

recurring basis (but fair value disclosures are required): 

As at 31 March 2018: 

                                                                                                                                                                               (₹ in lakhs) 

   Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total 

 Financial Assets        

i. Mutual funds 17,693.89 - - 17,693.89 

 Total 17,693.89 - - 17,693.89 

As at 31 March 2017: 

                                                                                                                                                                               (₹ in lakhs)  

   Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total 

 Financial Assets        

i. Mutual funds 10,700.18 - - 10,700.18 

 Total 10,700.18 - - 10,700.18 

There are no financial liabilities measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period. 

29. Financial risk management objectives and policies 

The Company’s principal financial liabilities comprise loans and borrowings, trade and other 

payables. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the Company’s 

operations. The Company’s principal financial assets include trade and other receivables, 

current investments and cash and cash equivalents that derive directly from its operations. 

The Company has investments in mutual funds on which gain or loss on fair value is 

recognised through profit or loss.  
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29. Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued) 

The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.  

The Company’s senior management oversees the management of these risks. The company’s 

senior management ensures that financial risk activities are governed by appropriate policies 

and procedures and that financial risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance 

with the company’s policies and risk objectives. The senior management reviews and agrees 

policies for managing each of these risks, which are summarised below. 

a) Market risk 

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument 

will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises three types 

of risk: interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk, such as equity price risk 

and commodity risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk include loans and 

borrowings, deposits, fair value through profit or loss investments, 

The sensitivity analysis in the following sections relate to the position as at 31 March 

2018 and 31 March 2017. 

The analysis excludes the impact of movements in market variables on: the carrying 

values of gratuity and other post- retirement obligations; provisions; and the non-

financial assets and liabilities of foreign operations. 

The following assumptions have been made in calculating the sensitivity analysis: 

The sensitivity of the relevant profit or loss item is the effect of the assumed changes 

in respective market risks. This is based on the financial assets and financial liabilities 

held at 31 March 2018 and 31 March 2017. 

b) Interest Rate Risk 

Interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows with respect to interest payments 

on borrowings will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The 

Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily 

to the Company’s long-term debt obligations with floating interest rates. 

The following table sets forth information relating to interest rate exposure (net) as at 

31 March 2018 and 31 March 2017.  

                                                                                                                                                                            (₹ in lakhs) 

 As at 31 March 2018 As at 31 March 2017 

Financial liabilities – Borrowings 85,188.00 80,600.00 

1% increase/ decrease in the interest rate would result in decrease/ increase in the 

Company’s profit before tax by approximately ₹ 851.88 lakhs and ₹ 806.00 lakhs and 

equity by approximately ₹ 557.06 lakhs and ₹ 527.06 lakhs for the year ended 31 

March 2018 and 31 March 2017 respectively. 

c) Foreign currency risk 

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure 

will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company’s exposure 

to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to the Company’s 

operating activities (when revenue or expense is denominated in a foreign currency)  
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29. Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued) 

c) Foreign currency risk (Continued) 

The Company’s objective is to try and protect the underlying values of the functional 

currency of respective group company’s balance sheet exposures. All exposures in 

currency other than functional currency are treated as ‘Forex Exposures’ irrespective 

of the group company from where the exposures originate. Exposures are broadly 

categorized into receivables and payable exposures.  

The foreign exchange rate sensitivity is calculated by aggregation of the net foreign 

exchange rate exposure and a simultaneous parallel foreign exchange rate shift of all 

the currencies by 5% against the functional currency of the Company. 

The following analysis has been worked out based on the net exposures of the 

Company as of the date of balance sheet which would affect the statement of Profit 

and Loss and equity. 

The following tables sets forth information relating to foreign currency exposure (net) 

as at 31 March 2018 and 31 March 2017.  

                                                                                                                                              (₹ in lakhs)   
As at 31 March 2018 As at 31 March 2017 

Currency Financial liabilities Financial Assets Financial liabilities Financial Assets 

USD - 1,344.96 - 239.90 

ZAR - - 4.28 - 

SGD 6.46 - 57.43 - 

Others 25.16 10.86 0.72 5.96 

     

5% appreciation/ depreciation of the respective foreign currencies with respect to 

functional currency of the Company would result in decrease/ increase in the 

Company’s profit before tax by approximately ₹ 66.21 lakhs and ₹ 9.17 lakhs and 

equity by approximately ₹ 43.07 lakhs and ₹ 6 lakhs for the year ended 31 March 2018 

and 31 March 2017 respectively. 

d) Credit risk 

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial 

instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The Company is exposed 

to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables) and from its 

financing activities, including deposits with banks and financial institutions, foreign 

exchange transactions and other financial instruments. 

In determining the allowances for doubtful trade and unbilled receivables, the 

Company has used a simplified approach by computing the expected credit loss 

allowance based on a provision matrix. The provision matrix takes into account 

historical credit loss experience and is adjusted for forward looking information. The 

expected credit loss allowance is based on the ageing of the receivables that are due 

and rates used in the provision matrix. 
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29. Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued) 

d) Credit risk (Continued) 

Ageing of receivables 

                                                                                                                                                                              (₹ in lakhs) 

 As at  

31 March 2018 

As at  

31 March 2017 

Within Credit period 6,369.04 3,494.08 

0-90 days 5,180.90 3,638.90 

91-180 days 2,965.33 960.76 

181-360 days 1,731.28 782.34 

More than 360 days 1,020.73 463.48 

Total Trade receivables 17,267.28 9,339.56 

   

Unbilled receivables 6,038.28 5,029.11 

   

Movement in expected credit loss allowance 

                                                                                                                                                                              (₹ in lakhs) 

 Year ended  

31 March 2018 

Year ended  

31 March 2017 

Opening balance 1,140.63 856.50 

Movement in expected credit loss calculated at 

lifetime expected credit loss 
 

474.01 

 

284.13 

Balance at the end of the year 1,614.64 1,140.63 

e) Liquidity risk 

The Company monitors its risk of a shortage of funds using a liquidity planning tool. 

The Company’s objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and 

flexibility through the use of bank overdrafts, bank loans, debentures, preference 

shares, finance leases and hire purchase contracts.  

Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that the company will not be able to settle or meet 

its obligations on time or at a reasonable price. The company’s corporate treasury 

department is responsible for liquidity, funding as well as settlement management. In 

addition, processes and policies related to such risks are overseen by senior 

management.  

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the company’s financial liabilities 

based on contractual undiscounted payments. 

(₹ in lakhs) 

Year ended 31 March 

2018 

On demand 0 to 12 

months 

1 to 5 

years 

>5 years Total 

Borrowings  - 6,448 34,720.00 44,020.00 85,188.00 

Non-Current Financial 

Liabilities  

- - - 39.70 39.70 

Current Financial 

Liabilities  

2,490.17 2,336.02 - - 4,826.19 

Trade Payables 1,498.59 17,222.39 - - 18,720.98 
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29. Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued) 

e) Liquidity risk (Continued) 

                                                                                                                                                                                (₹ in lakhs)  

 Year ended 31 

March 2017 

On demand 0 to 12 

months 

1 to 5 

years 

>5 years Total 

Borrowings   - 48,360.00 32,240.00 80,600.00 

Non-Current 

financial liabilities  

- - 26.34 - 26.34 

Current Financial 

Liabilities  

4,030.49 3,781.71 - - 7,812.20 

Trade Payables 1,673.53 7,293.25 - - 8,966.78 

The amounts disclosed in the maturity analysis does not exactly match with the 

carrying amounts in the balance sheet because the amounts included in the liquidity 

analysis are undiscounted cash flows whereas the amount disclosed in the balance 

sheet are at amortised cost, i.e. net off Arrangement Fees. 

30. Capital Management: 

The Company’s objective for capital management is to maximise shareholder value, 

safeguard business continuity and support the growth of the Company. The Company 

determines the capital requirement based on annual operating plans and long-term and other 

strategic investment plans. The funding requirements are met through equity, loans and 

operating cash flows generated. The Company is not subject to any externally imposed 

capital requirements. 

The capital structure is as follows: 

(₹ in lakhs)  

 Particulars As at  

31 March 2018 

As at 

 31 March 2017 

Total equity attributable to the equity shareholders of the 

Company 
18,925.47 12,239.69 

As percentage of total capital 18.26% 13.43% 

Current loans and borrowings 6407.77 - 

Non-current loans and borrowings 78,337.48 78,923.64 

Total loans and borrowings 84,745.25 78,923.64 

As a percentage of total capital 81.74% 86.57% 

Total capital (loans and borrowings and equity) 103,670.72 91,163.33 
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31. Related Party Transactions 

i. Names of related parties and nature of relationship 

Sr No Category of related parties Names 

A Holding Company STT India DC Pte. Ltd. (w.e.f 19 October 2016) 

Tata Communications Limited (upto 18 October 

2016) 

   

B Investing Company, its subsidiaries 

and joint ventures (w.e.f 19 October 

2016) 

Tata Communications Limited 

Tata Communications (Australia) Pty Limited 

Tata Communications (America) Inc. 

Tata Communications (Hong Kong) Limited 

  Tata Communications (Canada) Limited 

  Tata Communications International Pte Limited 

  Tata Communications Services International Pte 

Limited 

  Tata Communications Payment Solutions Limited 

Tata Communications Transformation Services 

Limited 

  Tata Communications (UK) Limited 

  Tata Communications (Ireland) Limited 

  Tata Communications (Middle East) FZ – LLC 

  Tata Communications (France) SAS 

  Smart ICT Services Private Limited 

   

C Tata Sons Limited, its subsidiaries and 

joint ventures (upto 18 October 2016) 

Tata Sons Limited  

  APTOnline Limited (formerly APOnline Limited) 

  MP Online Limited 

  Tata AIA Life Insurance Company Limited 

  Tata AIG General Insurance Company Limited 

  Tata Autocomp Systems Limited 

  Tata Consultancy Services Limited 

  Tata Interactive Systems GmbH 

  Tata Sky Limited 

  Tata Consultancy Services (South Africa) (Pty) 

Ltd. 

  Infiniti Retail Limited 

  Tata Capital Limited 

  Landmark E-tail Limited (w.e.f. 12 June 2015) 

  Tata Teleservices Limited 

  Tata AutoComp GY Batteries Private Limited 

(formerly Tata AutoComp GY Batteries Limited) 

   

D Key Managerial Personnel Mr. Sumit Mukhija  - CEO 

Mr. Ah Doo Lim - Director 

Mr. Bruno Lopez - Director 

Mr. Hemant Hansraj Luthara - Director 

Mr. Tat Hiang Sio - Director 

Mr. Tri Luu Pham - Director 

Mr. Stephen Geofrey Miller - Director 

Mrs. Prathiba Khnadelwal Advani – Director 
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31. Related Party Transactions (Continued) 

ii. Summary of transactions and balances with related parties 

                                                                                                                                                           (₹ in lakhs) 

 Particulars Holding 

Company 

Investing 

Company, its 

subsidiaries and 

associates 

Tata Sons 

Limited, its 

subsidiaries 

and joint 

ventures 

Key 

Management 

Personnel** 

Total 

Transactions 
   

 
 

Revenue from 

operations 

- 8,996.19 - - 8,996.19 

 3,745.48 4,000.79 1,611.11 - 9,357.38 
 

 
    

Other income - 63.03 - - 63.03 

 - 31.86 - - 31.86 
 

 
    

Outsource services - 1,536.10 - - 1,536.10 

 1,121.17 764.55 - - 1,885.72 
 

 
    

Commission - 600.00 - - 600.00 

 3,638.61 2,414.27 - - 6,052.88                            

  
   

 
 

Rent  - 10,352.19 - - 10,352.19 

 4,240.44 4,601.16 - - 8,841.60 
      

Network and cable 

charges 

- 383.83 - - 383.83 

 229.13 173.28 - - 402.41 
  

   
 

 

Other Expenses 1.04 322.72 - - 323.76 

 16.57 30.52 23.99  71.08 
  

   
 

  

Salaries and related 

costs 

- - - 404.54  404.54 

 - - 2.02 59.60 

(w.e.f. 19th 

oct’16) 

 
61.62 

      

Director’s 

remuneration 

                          -     - - 231.76 231.76 

 - - - 4.62 4.62 
      

Brand equity  - 123.91 - - 123.91 

 - 77.44 98.46 - 175.90 
  

   
 

 

Finance costs - - - - - 

 3,585.82 110.92 - - 3,696.74 
 

  
  

 

Loan taken - - - - - 

 3,822.00 - - - 3,822.00 
      

Loan Repaid - - - - - 

 - 36,222.00 - - 36,222.00 
      

Redemption of 

Debentures 

- - - - - 

 1,100.00 33,900.00 - - 35,000.00 
      

Sale of property, 

plant and equipment* 

- 30.38 - - 30.38 

 - 30.38 - - 30.38 
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31. Related Party Transactions (Continued) 

ii. Summary of transactions and balances with related parties (Continued) 

                                                                                                                                                                                             (₹ in lakhs)  

Particulars Holding 

Company 

Investing 

Company, its 

subsidiaries and 

associates*** 

Tata Sons 

Limited, its 

subsidiaries 

and joint 

ventures 

Key 

Management 

Personnel** 

Total 

    
 

 

Balances      

Receivables - 1,232.23 - - 1,232.23 

 - 408.11 - - 408.11 

      

Payables - 13,058.07 - 176.58 13,229.31 

 - 5,648.97 - - 5,648.97 

      

Other current 

liability 

- 44.55 - - 44.55 

 - 44.55 - - 44.55 

      

Other current assets 

– Prepaid Expenses 
- 229.63 - - 229.63 

 - - - - - 

      

Lease equalization 

liability – current 
- 337.84 - - 337.84 

 - 144.56 - - 144.56 

      

Lease equalization 

liability – non 

current 

 

- 

 

245.79 

 

- 

 

- 

 

245.79 

 - 559.68 - - 559.68 

      

Note: Previous year’s figures are in italics 

* Figure are inclusive of VAT & Swachh Bharat Cess (SBC) 

**Remuneration does not include charge for gratuity and leave encashment as 

employee-wise break up is not available. 

*** Reimbursement made of expenses incurred by related party for business purpose 

of the Company, or reimbursement received for expenses incurred by the Company 

on behalf of a related party shall not be deemed related party transactions 
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31. Related Party Transactions (Continued) 

iii. Statement of significant transaction  

                                                                                                                                                     (₹ in lakhs) 

Name of the Company For the year ended  

31 March 2018 

For the year ended  

31 March 2017 

Holding company (upto 18 October 2016)   

Tata communication limited   

     Revenue from operations - 3,745.48 

     Rent - 4,240.44 

     Outsource services - 1,121.17 

     Commission - 3,638.61 

     Network and cable charges - 229.13 

     Other expenses - 16.57 

     Finance cost - 3,585.82 

     Loan taken - 3,822.00 

     Redemption of debentures - 1,100.00 

Investing Company, its subsidiaries and associates (from 19 

October 2016) 

  

Tata communication limited   

     Revenue from operations 8,042.48 3,357.21 

     Rent 10,352.19 4601.16 

     Outsource services 1,536.10 764.55 

     Commission 600.00 2,414.27 

     Network and cable charges 383.83 173.28 

     Other expenses 58.36 30.52 

     Brand equity 123.91 77.44 

     Finance cost - 110.92 

     Other income 63.03 31.86 

     Sale of property, plant and equipment - 30.38 

     Trade payable 13,039.51 5,636.24 

     Lease equalisation liability - Current 337.84 144.56 

     Lease equalisation liability – Non current 245.79 559.68 

     Loan repaid - 36,222.00 

     Redemption of debentures - 33,900.00 

Tata Communications Transformation Services Limited   

     Revenue from operations 13.43 11.68 

     Other expenses 264.35 - 

     Other current assets – Prepaid expenses 229.63 - 

     Trade receivable 31.12 16.76 

     Trade payable 5.00 0.08 

     Other current liability 5.81 5.81 
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31. Related Party Transactions (Continued) 

iii. Statement of significant transaction (Continued)  

  (₹ in lakhs)                                                                                                                                                                                     

Name of the Company For the year ended  

31 March 2018 

For the year ended  

31 March 2017 

Tata Communications (America) Inc.   

     Revenue from operations 367.87 177.39 

     Trade receivable 498.90 130.60 

Tata Communications (UK) Limited   

     Revenue from operations 290.63 159.28 

     Trade receivable 412.67 124.51 

Tata Communications Payment Solutions Limited   

     Revenue from operations 165.98 191.48 

     Trade receivable 101.59 68.02 

     Other current liability 38.74 38.74 

   

Tata Sons Limited, its subsidiaries and joint 

ventures(upto 18 October 2016) 

  

   

Tata Sons limited   

     Brand equity - 98.46 

Tata Consultancy Services Limited   

     Revenue from operations - 955.94 

Tata Sky limited   

     Revenue from operations - 346.01 

Tata Teleservices Limited   

     Revenue from operations - 192.22 

Tata AIA Life Insurance Company Limited   

     Revenue from operations - 93.09 
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31. Related Party Transactions (Continued) 

iv. Key management personnel compensation 

                                                                                                                                             (₹ in lakhs) 

 Year Ended  

31 March 2018 

Year Ended 31 

March 2017* 

Short-term employee benefits 350.47 56.78 

Post- employment benefit 9.07 2.82 

Share based payments – cash settled incentive 45.00 - 

* w.e.f. 19th Oct’2016 404.54  59.60 

          

v. The transactions with related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail 

in arm's length transactions. This assessment is undertaken each financial year through 

examining the financial position of the related party and the market in which the 

related party operates. Outstanding balances at the year-end are unsecured and 

settlement occurs in cash. 

32 Operating lease arrangements 

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Company for certain buildings to 

set up internet data centers/colocation services 

a. As lessee: 

                                                                                                                                                                          (₹ in lakhs) 

  As at  

31 March 2018 

As at  

31 March 2017 

   

Minimum lease payments under operating leases 

recognised as expense in the year 
 

10,114.70 

 

8,633.27 
   

At the balance sheet date, minimum lease payments under non-cancellable 

operating leases fall due as follows: 

                                                                                                                                              (₹ in lakhs) 

 As at  

31 March 2018 

As at  

31 March 2017 

   

Due not later than one year 10,452.54 10,114.70 

Due later than one year but not later than five years 5,797.46 15,686.39 

Later than five years - - 

 16,250.00 25,801.09 
   

b. As lessor: 

The Company has leased certain facilities under non-cancellable operating lease 

arrangements to its customers. Future lease income in respect of these leases will be 

recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss of subsequent years as follows:  
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32 Operating lease arrangements (Continued) 

b. As lessor: (Continued) 

                                                                                                                      (₹ in lakhs) 

 As at  

31 March 2018 

As at  

31 March 2017 
   

Due not later than one year 8,319.08 8,649.10 

Due later than one year but not later than five years 21,281.72 27,384.96 

Later than five years - - 

 29,600.80 36,034.06 
   

33. Contingent liabilities and commitments: 

i. Contingent liabilities   

                                                                                                                                                                           (₹ in lakhs) 

 As at  

31 March 2018 

As at  

31 March 2017 
   

Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debt 

(refer 1 below) 
35.58 525.06 

Other claims (refer 2 below) 440.26 115.26 

1. Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debt include income tax claims.  

2. Other Claims include stamp duty and penalty on stamp duty on various properties. 

ii. Capital commitments: 

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account, not 

provided for amount to ₹ 58,251.13 lakhs (2017: ₹ 7,977.42 lakhs) 

34. Micro and small enterprises 

Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises have been determined to the extent such parties have 

been identified on the basis of information collected by the Management:       

                                                                                                                                               (₹ in lakhs) 

 As at 

31 March 2018 

As at 

31 March 2017 

a. Principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of 

the accounting year 
11.67 37.71 

b. Interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end 

of the accounting year 
0.20 0.40 

c. The amount of interest paid along with the amounts of the payment 

made   to the supplier beyond the appointed day 
1,816.86 668.19 

d. The amount of interest due and payable for the year 0.20 0.40 

e. The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of 

the accounting year 
0.10 0.40 

f. The amount of further interest due and payable even in the 

succeeding year, until such date when the interest dues as above are 

actually paid 

- - 

g.Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises* 50.36 66.97 

* Includes principal amount of ₹ 38.49 lakhs (2017: ₹ 28.86 lakhs) remaining unpaid to supplier 

prior to scheduled date  
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35. Events after the reporting period 

Increase in Authorized Share Capital: 

The Company vide its Extra Ordinary General Meeting dated 22 February, 2018 approved 

the increase in Authorized Capital from ₹ 5,00,000 (Rupees Five Lakh only) divided into 

50,000 (Fifty Thousand) equity shares of face value of ₹ 10/- (Rupees Ten only) each to ₹ 

150,00,00,000 (Rupees One Hundred and Fifty Crore only) divided into 15,00,00,000 

(Fifteen Crores) equity shares of face value of ₹ 10/- (Rupees Ten only) each by the creation 

of 14,99,50,000 (Fourteen Crore Ninety Nine Lakh Fifty Thousand) new equity shares of  

₹10/- (Rupees Ten only) each. 

Approval for Right Issue of Shares: 

Vide its Board Meeting dated 20 March, 2018, the Company approved the Right Issue of 

500 equity shares of  ₹  10/- each at a premium of  ₹ 26,92,878 (Rupees Twenty Six Lakh 

Ninety Two Thousand Eight Hundred and Seventy Eight only) aggregating to ₹ 

1,34,64,44,000 (Rupees One Hundred Thirty Four Crore Sixty Four Lakh Forty Four 

Thousand only) to the existing members of the Company, as on 20 March 2018, on right 

basis in the proportion to their existing equity holdings in the paid up share capital of the 

Company. 

Offer Letters were issued to the shareholders on 26 March 2018 and the Right Issue amount 

of  ₹ 99,63,68,560 (Rupees Ninety Nine Crores Sixty Three Lakh Sixty Eight Thousand Five 

Hundred and Sixty Only) and ₹ 35,00,75,440 (Rupees Thirty Five Crore Seventy Five Lakh 

Four Hundred and Forty only) from STT India DC Pte. Limited and Tata Communications 

Limited have already been received from on 5 April, 2018 and 18 April, 2018 respectively. 

The Board of Directors by way of a circular resolution on 25 April 2018 approved the 

allotment of equity shares and the shares were allotted on the same day 

36. Cash-settled RSU instruments will be granted to directors as 50% fees towards 

compensation with respect to their appointments and attendance for the board and committee 

meetings for the financial year FY18 (including services rendered for the period 19 October 

2016 to 31 March 2017)/.The remaining 50% fees including travel allowances to be settled 

in cash. 

As at 31 March 2018 RSUs, are not yet granted to the directors and when granted will be 

treated as fully vested from the date of grant considering that the director fees for the year 

have already been earned.  Directors to retain 50% of each year’s RSU grant for 4 years 

counting from the start date of the financial year to which the grant relates. 100% of the 

directors fees are accrued as these are earned as at 31 March 2018. 

37. Approval of financial statements 

The financial statements were approved for issue by the board of directors on 18 Jun 2018.  
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38. Previous period figures have been audited by a firm of Chartered Accountants other than 

B S R & Co. LLP. 

 

In terms of our report attached          For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

For B S R & Co. LLP 

Chartered Accountants 
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